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Financial Summary
B EE

RESULTS EiE
Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—tE —E-RF —T-AF —E-QmF —ET-=F
=R BN+~ F=+—-F +-A=+t-8B +t-A=+—-8 +-A=+-8
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FTEL FTEL TEL FTAEL
Revenue g % 35,829 28,827 25,706 10,688 12,666
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAET/(BE) 9,325 1,514 (2,945) (548) (6,173)
Income tax (expense)/credit S (X ),/ HE & (1,089) 41 809 48 524
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERMN/(BE) 8,236 1,555 (2,136) (500) (5,649)
Profit/(loss) attributable N/NGIESY DN
to owners of EIERF/ (1)
the Company 1,666 (2,136) (500) (5,649
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
ZE—t& —T-RF —T-1F —E-mF —T-=F
a= =R =~ — A =+—H +-A=+—H +tZA=+—8 +ZH=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER TEL TERL TET TET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EER &
Total assets BERE 416,208 445,070 247,829 147,608 148,052
Total liabilities BEAE (14,950) (15,795) (12,979) (12,904) (12,233)
Net assets FEE 401,258 429,275 234,850 134,704 135,819
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PER SHARE DATA

As at

31 December
2017
“E-t%§
T=B=+-H

HK Cents
Al

Earnings/(loss) per share

sREH/(BR) 0.69

Net book value per share

35.40

Financial Summary (Continued)

MBEEE (&)
BRAEN(ER)

As at As at As at As at

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2016 2015 2014 2013
—E-RF —T-1F —E-QmF —T-=F
TZA=t-HA tZA=t+-B +ZA=+-A +ZA=+—-H
HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents HK Cents
B Al oyl oAl
0.18 (0.33) (0.09) (1.06)

37.88 29.90 25.21 25.42

RBERARAF

“E-LEER
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Financial Summary (Continued)
MEREE (&)

PROFIT/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO EARNINGS/(LOSS) PER SHARE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

ERARFAEABGER(BR) SREFN (EHE)

(excluding extra-ordinary items)

(excluding extra-ordinary items)

(TEFEFLFHEEE) (TERFEFEFEEB)
HK$'000 F# 7T HK Cents 71l
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= #HE
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ZRIEEFE
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Financial Summary (Continued)

MEREE (&)
As of 31 December 2017 2016 Changes
R+=—A=+—8 TE 5 RS 23
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
BET T BT T %
Financial highlights MERE
Revenue Wz 35,829 28,827 +24%
Profit for the year RE R F| 8,236 1,555 +430%
Earnings per share fi% 22 7
(HK cents per share) (ZRRE)
Basic HAK 0.18 +283%
Diluted e 0.18 +283%
RMB
AR
Average daily room rate THEXREE 251 +14%
Hotel occupancy rate B JE A & 54.92% +13.9ppt
Liquidity ratios REBESHLR
Current ratio Vi 10.09
Average trade receivables turnover T E 5 W RIE
days" A RH 9.61
Capital ratio E&tb=x
Gearing ratio? BEBGEHL=XY 1.08%
Notes:

(1) Average trade receivables turnover days is equal to the average of the beginning (1) FHEGERAERERHAENE BB REBERE

and closing trade and bills receivables balance divided by turnover and multiplied WEENFNRFREGHTHERNE XS BF
by the number of days in the year. LAE R B o
@) Gearing ratio equals non-current liabilities divided by total equity. @ EEABLEXERNIERDEERIARSEE -

mezraRAs —=—tesx 07



08

Chairman’s Statement
EERE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of
Fujian Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | hereby present the annual
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company together with our subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for
the financial year ended 31 December 2017 (“2017” or the “current
year” or “reporting year” or the “year under review”) to the
shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”).

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$35.83 million, representing an increase
of approximately 24.28% as compared to approximately HK$28.83
million in the corresponding period last year.

Net profit attributable to shareholders was approximately HK$7.95
million (2016: Approximately HK$1.66 million).

Earnings per share was approximately 0.69 HK cents for year ended
31 December 2017 (2016: 0.18 HK cents).

Net assets (Total assets less total liabilities) decrease by approximately
HK$28.02 million to approximately HK$401.26 million as compared
with HK$429.28 million as at 31 December 2016. The decrease of
net assets mainly due to a joint venture ceased to be a subsidiary of
the Company and become an associate of the company.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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PROSPECTS

Going forward, the Group will grasp the development trend of tourism
and related industries rely on our advantages in Fujian Province,
confronting challenges, deploying and implementing sound business
strategies in order to enhance our internal driving force and long-term
competitiveness for our sustainable development, thereby providing
foundation for our future development.

In addition, the Group will speed up its review of its existing business
and continuously update its business plans and strategies to keep
pace with future development, and will continue to integrate business
clusters, while expanding into industries such as finance, high
technology, intelligence, etc. At the same time, the Group will
continue to review and expand the appropriate risk, financial and
operational management measures to ensure that the measures
cover the entire business scope.

Our overall objective is to better utilise the Group’s resources in order
to maximise every shareholder’s interest.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to
all shareholders, business partners and customers for their support,
and to all our colleagues for their efforts, hard work and dedication.
Their hardwork represents the foundation of the Group’s future
business development.

Liu Hongijian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB WD AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group recorded net profit
attributable to owners of the Company approximately HK$7.95 million
(2016: Approximately HK$1.66 million). The Group’s substantial
growth in net profit is mainly attributable to (i) the significant increase
of around 100% in rental income from properties in Hong Kong for
the year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to the rental income
from properties in Hong Kong of approximately HK$3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016, which is mainly due to the acquisition
of investment properties by the Group in 2016; (i) the increase of
around 15% in revenue from hotel operations for the year ended 31
December 2017 as compared to the revenue from hotel of
approximately HK$25.83 million for the year ended 31 December
2016 and (iii) increase in profit contribution from associated
companies during the year.

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
amounted to approximately HK$35.83 million, representing an
increase of approximately 24.28% from approximately HK$28.83
million in the previous year. The increase is mainly due to the increase
in business volume of star-rated hotel operation and rental income of
properties in Hong Kong during the year under review.

Given our good balance sheet status and cash generation ability, our
financial position continues to be strong. As at 31 December 2017,
the gearing ratio (divided non-current liabilities by equity plus non-
current liabilities multiple by 100 which results in percentage) of the
Group was 1.05% (2016: 1.08%).

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

A. Star-rated hotel operation

Star-rated hotel operation is the main source of revenue for the
Group. For the year ended 31 December 2017, the turnover of
the hotel operation was approximately HK$29.75 million (2016:
HK$25.83 million), representing an increase of approximately
15.18% from the previous year.

For the year under review, the average occupancy rate was
approximately 68.82% (2016: 54.92%), representing an
increase of 13.90% over the previous year. Average daily rate
(ADR) was approximately RMB285 (2016: RMB251)
representing a increase of 13.55% over the previous financial
year.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

A.

Star-rated hotel operation (continued)

The following table sets out the amount and percentage of
contributions from different businesses of the star-rated hotel
operation for the year ended 31 December 2017, together with
comparative figures of 2016:

31 December 2017

EEE W E D (&)

Z O B @)

ERBEIEEE @

HE-_ZT—+HF+_A=T—BLLFE
HE AEEEREELENZTIEER
MEXBENMRBELEEEANHLE_T—
NERBLLEIT

31 December 2016

—E—tHF+=-A=+—H —E-RNFE+ZA=1+—H

Amount % in Amount % in
HK$’000 turnover HK$'000 turnover
& XEEE b 358
THET =Rl FET BHt
Accommodation revenue  ZEEEE I A 15,493 52% 11,169 43%
Rental revenue A P A 4,844 16% 5,842 23%
Catering BERHS 8,211 28% 8,008 31%
Others H 1,201 4% 808 3%
29,749 100% 25,827 100%

Accommodation revenue ZEHEHENWR A

The accommodation revenue was mainly determined by the
number of available rooms, occupancy rate and ADR of the
Group’s hotel. During the year under review, the
accommodation revenue of star-rated hotel was approximately
HK$15.49 million, representing an increase of approximately
39% over the corresponding period of 2016, which is mainly
due to accommodation reserve income for year ended 31
December 2017.

Rental revenue

In order to stabilise the income of the hotel operation, the hotel
leased out the shopping centre in the Group’s hotel. This
contributed to approximately HK$4.84 million in rental revenue
during the year under review, representing approximately 16%
of the hotel operation’s turnover.

P AE A = EEUR B AN & B 5 &Y
AHEEEE AEXRTHEXREE-
CEFER  ZRBELEFHLHEKA
RE1B49B8ETT BR_T-XNFEH L
THHI39% » YRR BE_T—tF+=
A=T—HFEARAXAERHERA L
FHRTEL -

A A

ABRIFETHRA CBEBAEBZEBEERN
i HE R AEERBEARNERLD
A4 BB I 2 IR A - 5B JE 75 & 2
FE16% °

MAEZRARAR —Z-—LHEFH
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED (&)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

A.

Star-rated hotel operation (Continued)

Catering revenue

Starting from 2015, the Group made a major effort to develop
the catering business through the hotel. During the year under
review which generating revenue of approximately HK$8.21
million representing approximately 28% of the hotel operation’s
turnover.

Increasing costs arising from the operating environment,
especially from increasing wages, remains the key challenge for
the hotel industry. To overcome these adversities, the Group
will continue to implement tight cost control measures and seek
further improvement in operational efficiency to minimise the
adverse impacts.

Improved customer services and better hotel facilities are core
competitive advantages to seize the growth opportunity in local
tourism and restaurant industries. The Board believes that the
hotel business in Xiamen will contribute positively to the Group.
Meanwhile, the hotel management is enhancing sales force
regarding wedding banquet, catering and related services as
well.

Hong Kong properties held by the Group

The occupancy rate for the properties of the Group in Hong
Kong is 100% during the year under review, which brought a
steady rental income to the Group.

The rental income of the properties in Hong Kong was
approximately HK$6.08 million for the year under review, while
the Group recorded approximately HK$3.00 million for the
previous year.

The significant increase of around 100% in rental income from
properties in Hong Kong for the year ended 31 December 2017
as compared to the rental income from properties in Hong
Kong of approximately HK$3.00 million for the year ended 31
December 2016, which is mainly due to the acquisition of
investment properties by the Group in 2016.

With the support of the stable local economy growth, we are
confident in delivering continued revenue growth in 2018.
Rental reversion and stable occupancy will drive revenue growth
for the Group’s properties.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Qe

AY

& 2 O B (@)

ERBEIEEEm

/N

B2015F  HERNEREBERER - ©
CEEEIANARNEBAERA821E B LRI
A AR ETS L ETEH28% °

LERRERATESR LERTARE
EF RITESEREB - BRRLETF
B AEBREEETRMRAEEE
M BSRE-—SRELERE  BREE
AR TR E -

BENEFPIRG LR 0B ERIESE
—HSREABRLBEFEE IR E IR
LRERERERMBNIETR -EFEM
B EFVBEXRBHRASESREAR
Bl BRI BEEEEREMSEE
BE  BERELEBERGHNEENE -

BRYE
REEMA AEENE2HBEA

100%  RAEERETRIBEZEHE K
A °

REBEHAN BEYWEESRALR608
BEL AREREFREYEFLHAR300
BAETT

HE-_ZT—+tF+-_A=+—HBIEFE
ZEBYPEHRERALBE T —RF+
“A=tT—RIEFEHNI0EETARE
M#AI100% @ WIHEHRAKBER -_F—X
FEBRBREMFEME -

ERMRBRENKEEERT T HMAAGE
DE-ZE-NFERRGHAEN UK EE
K- BHBER LABRLRBENERXH
TRFBAEN Y R AEE -



Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

OPERATIONAL REVIEW (continued)

C. Piano Manufacturing

The Group diversified its business into piano manufacturing by
acquiring a 25% equity interest in Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co.
Ltd. (“Harmony Piano”) in 2005. This business interest has
brought a steady profit to the Group for the past few years. For
the year under review, the Group recorded a share of profit
from its interest in Harmony Piano approximately HK$0.54
million (2016: Loss of approximately HK$0.35 million) which
was primarily due to a large one-off professional charge
incurred during the year.

Harmony Piano recorded a profit of the year ended 31
December 2017, was mainly due to the significant increase of
revenue for year ended 31 December 2017 as compared to the
year ended 31 December 2016.

DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN JOINT
VENTURE

On 6 January 2017, the Company and Fujian Huamin Industrial
Group Limited (“FHIG”) agreed that the registered capital of their joint
venture Fujian Huamin Financial Leasing Co. Ltd. ({22t EHE
AR A7) (“Joint Venture”), shall be increased from RMB80 million to
RMB170 million. The Company and FHIG shall contribute RMB27.2
million and RMB62.8 million to the increase in capital of the Joint
Venture, respectively.

Upon the completion of the transactions under the Capital Increase
Agreement, the total capital contributions of the Company and FHIG
to the Joint Venture increased to RMB68 million and RMB102 million,
respectively, the Company and FHIG held 40% and 60% of the equity
interest in the Joint Venture, respectively, and the Joint Venture
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company and became an associate
of the Company.

EEE W E D (&)

% 3 O] BE (@)

C. MENE

AEER _TTRFEBTKBEREM
MBHSRMNDBERQR (R @BMNME
MERRAR) ([FNEEHE])25% M # M
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+tFE+TZA=+—HIt BENBHZZ
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#)36E B ITTEIE) ©
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+—BLEFEMERSZALEEZE =T —X
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HESERNAER

RZE—+tF-—ARBARAIREFHEXRR
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED (&)

DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN JOINT
VENTURE (Continued)

Based on the intention of the parties, all of the additional funding to
the Joint Venture (after deducting minor amounts to be retained as
working capital) are proposed to be utilised to further expand the sale
and leaseback business of the Joint Venture. The Joint Venture did
not have sufficient net assets for the expected funding of the above
operations. Therefore, the Capital Increase Agreement was entered in
respect of the increase in capital in the Joint Venture.

Given that relatively large amounts of capital are required in the
finance leasing business, the Board believes that the proposed
increase of capital of the Joint Venture to RMB170 million pursuant to
the Capital Increase Agreement can further expand and develop the
finance leasing business of the Joint Venture, which would diversify
the income streams of the Group and increase the profitability of the
Group. Given that the Joint Venture will continue to engage in the
finance leasing business, the Company expects that it can share the
results of the Joint Venture (as an associate of the Company) in the
future, and hence, its income stream can be diversified and would not
be limited to hotel operations and property investment.

The increase of paid-up capital of the Joint Venture to RMB170
million would allow the Joint Venture to take advantage of certain
PRC tax benefits for finance leasing and sale and leaseback
businesses, which would allow immediate reimbursement after levy (B[]
HBNER) of the part of the actual tax burden (B R Fi &) of value-added
taxation over 3%, such that the overall actual value-added taxation
would be not more than 3%.

FHIG indirectly held 67.92% of the issued share capital of the
Company and was a controling shareholder of the Company.
Therefore, FHIG is a connected person of the Company for the
purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Accordingly, the
transaction contemplated under the Capital Increase Agreement
constitute connected transaction of the Company.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

DISPOSAL OF INTEREST IN JOINT
VENTURE (Continued)

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the
transaction contemplated under the Capital Increase Agreement
dated 6 January 2017 entered into between the Company and FHIG,
on an aggregated basis with the transaction under the Investment
Agreement which were entered into within a 12-month period, exceed
5% but are less than 25%, the transaction contemplated under the
Capital Increase Agreement constitutes a discloseable and connected
transaction of the Company which is subject to the reporting,
announcement and shareholder approval requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The resolution related to the Capital Increase Agreement was
approved at the extraordinary general meeting of the Company dated
23 March 2017 and completed on 10 May 2017.

For the year under review, the Group recorded a share of profit from
the interest in Fujian Huamin Financial Leasing Co. Ltd. approximately
HK$1.24 million.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

The uncertainties in global economic recovery, slowdown in domestic
macro-economic growth, structural oversupply in the hotel industry
and the rapid development of information technology relating to
mobile internet will continue to affect the development of the Group’s
principal business. With the implementation of the “Several Opinions
of the State Council on Promoting the Reform and Development of
the Tourism Industry”, the radiation effect of free trade zones in Fujian
Province, we can see bright future for the development of hotel,
tourism industry and tourism related services in China. Well-
positioned to address these challenges and take these development
opportunities, the Group remains fully confident in its future
development.

The Group will strive to seize the opportunity presented by the reform
of state-owned assets, give full play to the strengths of FTDC as “Top
20 advantage Tourism Group in China” and seek investment
opportunities in tourist related and other business areas, together
with accelerate the reform in the area of institutional mechanisms,
integrate the industry chains of hotel, tourism and other businesses.
Meanwhile, we will expanding into industries such as finance, high
technology, intelligent ,etc. to achieve diversification of our income
source, so as to further increase our overall asset return and
enterprise value.

EEE W E D (&)

HESE AT EZEm

Al

HRARREEREXR _T—tF—-ARX
BRIV ZIBEHMZE A TRET X SN A
FALBERABA DR (EBR12(E A BEARE
BREWZITLZRHELTE) BBS%ELIR
25%  REMBETRETZIXFBEHARA
MATHRENMBERS WAEST EWmRANE
TZHH - RERRRUENHRE

ERABEHBLRBREEN _T—LF=A_
TZAZERFINAGEHRHEIR T —+F
EA+THEZEK-

BE_ZT—tF+-_A=1t—HBi1 BEREZ
ZFEMEMEERARZEEHEN1248E
TLEAM e

RIREE

EREEERFETHETE BRARERLEE
BAE - BEITERBRMEEBERERN T A
EEHEBMBEEERMREZREEZ K #
BYE8AKBEILEBNER - BEEEKER
(ARREREENEFZRNETER)FRE
MEE UREZEHEZEFHBE MBI
fE& o B 2GR REFERIRERERE X
AREBERARER - AKEKE GRS KB
EREEREE  WRKERFTMED -

AEBRESHIEERERNFHRE RO EEFIKR
HEBEERIPEKRESE20R]ZEE Rk
BHRBTENAEMBERAE TEESIRE#
TR ERBIBHNE BEBEERER
REEXMEGMEXRE REAEASHE S/
BB EFEXZAR BREXBERAXERZ
e E—FPRABENERBORNEEXE
1B

MAEZRARAR —Z-—LHEFH

15



16

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

EEENWED (&)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2017, the total share capital of the Company was
HK$898,839,029 divided into 1,145,546,000 ordinary shares.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a net cash balance of
approximately HK$44.28 milion (2016: HK$100.04 million). The
Group’s net asset value (assets less liabilities) was approximately
HK$401.26 million (2016: HK$429.28 million), with a liquidity ratio (ratio
of current assets to current liabilities) of 4.37 (2016: 10.09). During
the year under review, there was no material change in the Group’s
funding and treasury policy. The Directors do not expect the
Company to experience any problem with liquidity and financial
resources in the foreseeable future.

Charge on Assets

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had not charged any of its
assets. (2016: Nil)

Funding and Treasury Policies

The funding and treasury policies of existing subsidiaries of the Group
are centrally managed and controlled by the Group’s senior
management in Hong Kong.

Bank Loans and Other Borrowings

There were no outstanding bank loans and other borrowings by the
Company and the Group as at 31 December 2017 (2016: Nil).

Capitalised Borrowing Costs

No borrowing costs were being capitalised during the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Exposure to Fluctuation in Exchange Rate and
Related Hedges

There has been no significant change in the Group’s policy in terms
of exchange rate exposure. The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Most of the transactions and cash and cash equivalents
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and in Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk due to the
exchange rate fluctuation of RMB against HK$. Moderate fluctuation
of RMB against HK$ was expected. The Group considered the
foreign currency risk exposure is acceptable. However, management
of the Group will monitor foreign exposure closely and consider the
use of hedging instruments when necessary.

As most of the Company’s business operations are located in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, the Company faces foreign currency risks
due to exchange gain/loss from exchange rate fluctuations as well as
currency conversion risk due to converted net asset value fluctuations
of investment projects in Mainland China. To effectively manage
foreign currency risk, the Company closely monitors foreign exchange
markets, and utilises multiple strategic approaches, such as
optimising cash management strategy and project finance
instruments, to manage foreign exchange risk.

Material acquisitions and disposals

The Description of Acquisitions and disposals during the year under
review is set out in management discussion and analysis section of
this report.

Capital Commitments
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

B E A EE o A ()

FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Contingent Liability

The Group did not have any significant contingent liability during the
year under review.

Major Events

Save as aforesaid, the Group had no material capital commitments
and no future plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31
December 2017.

Human Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had approximately 140
employees in Hong Kong and Xiamen. The remuneration package
was determined with reference to performance and the prevailing
market rate. The Group also provides employees with training, the
opportunity to join its Mandatory Provident Fund scheme and medical
insurance cover.

Building Capabilities

In today’s competitive labour market, it is essential to attract and
retain talented people, and to equip employees with the capabilities
to support business development. The Group has a comprehensive
career advancement plan and well-rounded training programs to
grow the capabilities of our employees, and ensure each employee
has the skills and know-how necessary to deliver quality results in an
efficient and effective manner. Department heads and supervisors act
as mentors, and training workshops, courses and seminars are
provided to meet the specific needs of each staff member.

Nurturing Team Spirit

Professional and social events promote communication and cohesion
across departments, business units and levels of seniority throughout
the Group. These activities include Corporate Team-building
Programs, staff outings, leisure activities and cocktail parties for new
hires and promoted staff.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LIU Hongjian, aged 45, joined the Company in January 2018.
He is an Executive Director and Chairman of Board of Directors of the
Company. He is currently the vice secretary of Communist Party
Committee, a director and general manager of Fujian Tourism
Development Group Company Limited (f@ 2 & ik R EEBPR A T)
(REEEERFEREEEREMTAR) (‘FTDC”). He is responsible
for the overall strategic planning of the Group.

Mr. Liu obtained his bachelor degree in science from Fujian Normal
University and master degree in philosophy. Mr. Liu has extensive
experience in administration, corporate and capital management. Mr.
Liu has taken up a number of management posts, including vice
secretary of Communist Party Committee and secretary of Committee
for Disciplinary Inspection of Qiangi Town, Fuding City, Fujian
Province; director of Management Committee and secretary of
Communist Party Committee in Long’an Development Zone of Fuding
City, Fujian Province; member of Municipal Standing Committee,
director of Executive Office of Fuding City, Fujian Province; director of
Management Committee of Taimushan Scenery District and head of
Tourism Bureau of Fuding city, Fujian Province; member of Municipal
Standing Committee and deputy mayor of Xiapu county, Fujian
Province; secretary of Communist Party Committee and head of
Bureau of Foreign Trade and Economic Cooperation of Ningde City,
Fujian Province; and member of Communist Party Committee and
vice general manager of Fujian CTS Group (12 9 ik E A 7).

Ms. CHEN Danyun, aged 53, joined the Company in August 2015.
She is Executive Director and General Manager of the Company. She
is responsible for the general operation and management of the
Company and to execute the overall strategic planning of the Group.

Ms. Chen has over 30 years of experience in international trade,
corporate management and investment management. Ms. Chen
graduated from Xiamen University with a bachelor’'s degree in
economics and obtained her Master of Business of Administration
degree from Murdoch University in Australia. She is a senior
economist.

Mr. CHEN Yang, aged 53, is the Executive Director and Vice General
Manager of the Company. Mr. Chen joined the Group in June 2015
and assists the general manager in the daily operations of the Group.

Mr. Chen has approximately 30 years’ experience in finance
management. Mr. Chen has taken up a number of management
posts, including a manager of financial department of Fuzhou
Harmony Piano Co., Ltd. (@M AIZMZAMH BR A E (R - 12/
B INE=ABR A7), a vice general manager of the finance department
of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited ({g 2 & % (&
E)&PR A7) and the financial controller of Fujian Investment and
Development Company Limited. Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor
degree in economics from Xiamen University in the PRC. Mr. Chen is
a senior economist.
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Directors’ Biography (Continued)
EE=HE (&)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. FENG Qiang, aged 51, is the director of investment and planning
department of Fujian Tourism Development Group Company Limited
(“FTDC”). Mr. Feng joined the Group in January 2005.

He spent years of research in the Chinese Academy of Social Science
at Fujian for corporate strategies and reforms. He also has practical
experience in corporate investment planning, operational management
and corporate restructuring during his service in the government of
Fujian Province and its related companies. Mr. Feng has over 30
years’ corporation and investment management experience.

Mr. Feng has a bachelor degree in economics from Shanghai
University of Finance and Economics.

Mr ZHANG Fan, aged 45, joined the Company in May 2015 as non-
executive director.

He graduated from the Xiamen University in International Finance,
holds with Bachelor of Economics Degree. He is an Economist in
Mainland China and has over 20 years’ extensive experience in
financial management and investment management. He is currently a
deputy general manager of Min Xin Holdings Ltd. (Stock Code:
00222), director of Min Xin Insurance Company Limited and Fujian
Minxin Investments Co., Ltd., chairman of Sanming Sanyuan District
Minxin Micro Credit Company Limited and a director of Sino Earn
Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. WANG Ruilian, aged 54, is a non-executive director of the
Company, and Mr. Wang was an executive director and general
manager of the Company from July 2006 to October 2015. With
effect from 19 October 2015, Mr. Wang has resigned as executive
director and general manager of the Group and has been re-
designated from an executive Director to a non-executive Director.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Wang has approximately 30 years’ experience in management
and finance. Mr. Wang has previously been sent to oversea
companies to take up a number of senior management posts,
including a director and vice general manager of the Finance
Department of Fujian Investment and Development Company Limited,
and the managing director of Fujian Enterprises (Hungary) Co., Ltd.
Currently, he is a director of finance department of Fujian Tourism
Development Group Company Limited (FTDC).

Mr. Wang acquired his bachelor degree in economics from Xiamen
University in the PRC and master degree of International Management
from Australian National University in Australia.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. LAM Kwong Siu, GBs, aged 83, was the representative of the
National People’s Congress (10th Session). He is currently the vice
chairman of BOC International Holdings Limited, the honorary
chairman of Hong Kong Federation of Fujian Association, the life
honorary chairman of Hong Kong Fukien Chamber of Commerce, the
vice chairman of Fujian-Hong Kong Economic Cooperation, the life
honorary chairman of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce
and the Adviser of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association,
the honorary president of Chinese Bankers Club, Hong Kong. Mr.
Lam is also the Independent Non-executive Director of Bank of China
International Limited, China Overseas Land & Investment Limited,
Yuzhou Properties Company Limited, Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited,
Far East Consortium International Limited and Vico International
Holdings Limited. Mr. Lam was awarded the HKSAR Silver Bauhinia
Star in 2003 and HKSAR Gold Bauhinia Star in 2016.

Mr. Lam joined the Group and was appointed as independent non-
executive director in 11 December 2003.

Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim, FcrA (Aust.), CPA (Macau), FCPA (Practising), @ged
82, joined the Group in September 2004. He is the founder and
senior partner of PKF, Accountants and Business Advisers, and a
director of PKF Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Leung is the independent
non-executive director of a number of listed companies namely, S E
A Holdings Ltd., High Fashion International Ltd. and Phoenix Satellite
Television Holdings Ltd..

Mr. Leung joined the Group and was appointed as independent non-
executive director in 24 September 2004.
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Directors’ Biography (Continued)
EE=HE (&)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DlRECTO RS (Continued)

Mr. NG Man Kung, aged 66, graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with an attendance certificate in banking. Mr. Ng has been
senior management in banking industry of Hong Kong for 28 years.
He was appointed as the Managing Director and General Manager of
Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 1992 and the vice-chairman
and Chief Executive of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 2001.
He retired from Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited in 2012. Mr. Ng
was a member of the council of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University
from 1995 to 1999 and was a member of Fujian Provincial Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference from 1993
to 2013. Mr. Ng was served as a non-executive director of Roma
Group Limited (Stock Code: 8072-GEM) from August 24, 2017 to
December 18, 2017. Currently, Mr. Ng serves as an independent
non-executive director of ELL Environmental Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 01395), an independent non-executive director of China
HKBridge Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 02323), an independent
non-executive director of Shanghai Zendai Property Limited (Stock
Code: 00755) and an independent non-executive director of Guoan
International Limited (Stock Code: 00143).

Mr. Ng joined the Group and was appointed as independent non-
executive director in 30 June 2014.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report and the
consolidated audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF
OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding, hotel
business and property investment and those of its subsidiaries are
disclosed in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
principal activities and geographical area of operation for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results and cash flow of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2017 and the financial status of the Group and the
Company as at 31 December 2017 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 71 to 166.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2017.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the statement of net assets/liabilities of
the Group for the last financial years is set out on pages 4 to 7.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (B

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 21.26% (2016: 17.13%) of the Group’s
total sales for the year and the largest customer included therein
amounted to approximately 7.10% (2016: 4.52%)).

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 45.46% (2016: 28.56%) of the Group’s total purchases
for the year and purchase from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 20.69% (2016: 9.54%).

None of the Directors of the Company, or any of his associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or suppliers.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017 are set out on page 74 and in note
26 to the consolidated financial statements.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Details of the movements in prepaid lease payments of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 31 December 2017, the investment properties of the Group were
revalued by an independent firm of professional surveyor and property
valuer on an open market value basis at HK$223.30 million. Details of
these and other movements during the year in the investment
properties of the Group are set out in pages 167 to 168 and note 16
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATES

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2017, the share capital of the Company consisted
of 1,145,546,000 ordinary shares.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, there were no continuing connected transactions
which were required to be disclosed in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

None of the related party transactions as set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements constituted a discloseable
connected transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (B

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

As at the date of this report, no accidents involving serious injuries,
death or property damage has been reported to our management.
Furthermore, during the Reporting Period, we were not subject to any
claims arising from any material accidents involving personal injuries
or death or property damage that had a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results of operation. We were in
compliance with all relevant PRC laws and regulations regarding
occupational health and safety in all material respects during the
Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report.

Environmental Policies and Compliance

We are committed to minimise the impact of our activities on the
environment. To this end, various impact assessments have been
undertaken and policies created which are in line with international
best practices and long term sustainability.

The core values of our environmental policy are to meet all the
environmental legislations that relate to our operations.

In addition to full compliance with all laws relevant to sustaining and
improving the environment, we are committed to deploying
ecologically friendly construction techniques, materials and
operational procedures. It is policy of the Group to promote clean
operation and strives to making the most efficient use of resources in
its operations, and minimising wastes and emission. The Group
achieves this through actively re-designing its activities and operation
that encourage and promote recycling of resources, using
environmental friendly raw materials and reviewing operations
constantly to ensure that the processes are effective and efficient.

No environmental claims, lawsuits, penalties or administrative
sanctions were reported to our management during the Reporting
Period. We are of the view that we were in compliance with all
relevant laws and regulations.
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RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
following are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be
material now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Economic risks

A severe or prolonged downturn of the global economy.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rate, inflation and
fluctuations of interest rates would adversely affect the customers’
spending sentiment and the Group’s profit margin.

Operational risks

Failure to compete in the competitive environment which the Group

operates in;

Unable to keep pace with the technological advances in timely and
cost-efficient manner; and

Failure to attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified
managerial, sales, marketing, operating, and technical personnel, the
loss of key personnel, or the inability to find additional qualified
personnel.

Regulatory risks

Failure to adhere to laws, regulations and rules, or to obtain or
maintain all applicable permits and approvals;

Infringement of valid patents, copyrights or other intellectual property
rights held by third parties; and

Any change in laws and regulations in different customers’ and
suppliers’ countries.

Financial risks

Details of financial risks are set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (B

RELATIONSHIPS WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including
customers, suppliers and employees. This includes providing the
Group’s customers with good quality services, and timely, appropriate
pre/after sales services. Similarly, the Group views its suppliers not
just vendors but as strategic partners, important links in its supply
chain. The Group’s procurement policy is to maintain good
relationship and communications with suppliers under the principal of
mutual trust. The Group considers its employees the key to
sustainable business growth. Workplace safety is priority of the
Group, and with due awareness of all employees throughout the year,
the Group was able to maintain safety workplaces.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in Mainland China and Hong Kong, while the Company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group
accordingly shall comply with relevant laws and regulations in
Mainland China and Hong Kong and the respective places of
incorporation of the Company and its subsidiaries.

During the year and up to the date of this annual report, the Board
was unaware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

LIU Hongjian (Chairman of the Board)
(Appointed on 23 January 2018)

WANG Xiaowu (Resigned on 23 January 2018)

CHEN Danyun (Chief Executive)

CHEN Yang

Non-executive Directors:

FENG Qiang
ZHANG Fan
WANG Ruilian

Independent Non-executive Directors:

LAM Kwong Siu
LEUNG Hok Lim
NG Man Kung

Mr. Wang Xiaowu has reached the retirement age and resigned as
the Chairman and an executive director of the Company with effect
from 23 January 2018.

In accordance with article 101 of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
one-third shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 101 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Liu Hongjian, Mr. Feng Qiang and Mr. Lam Kwong Siu shall retire
by rotation in the forthcoming annual general meeting and all, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (B

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting have a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHY

Biography of the Directors is set out on pages 19 to 22.

Directors’ Emoluments and the Five Highest
Paid Individuals

Details of directors’ remuneration and those of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 11 and 12 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY
DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive in the shares, underlying shares, and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of
the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) were as follows:
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS BY
DlRECTORS (Continued)

Long position in shares and underlying shares
of the Company

Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (E)

BEEREHE@

AoTROREERD 2HFR

Number of issued Percentage of

Director Type of interests ordinary shares held interest
e 81T Em

55 EmERl ZERHE Aot

WANG Xiaowu (Resigned on 23 January 2018) Personal 1,560,000 0.14%

ANR(R=ZF—-NF—AZ+=HEFF) [EPN

CHEN Danyun Personal 420,000 0.04%

BRIy = &l A

Save as disclosed above, during the year under review, none of the [ F X AT T RNEEEER  EERTH

Directors and chief executive had or was deemed to have any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (as
defined in Part XV of the SFO) (i) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries
engaged in any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESSES

During the year, none of the Directors nor their respective associates
had any business which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with any business of the Group.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (B

INTERESTS IN ASSETS OF THE GROUP

During the year, none of the Directors had any direct or indirect
interests in any assets which have been acquired or disposed of, or
leased to, or which are proposed to be acquired or disposed of or
leased to, the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

None of the Directors was materially interested directly or indirectly in
any contract or arrangement subsisting during or at the end of the
year under review which is significant in relation to the business of the
Group.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, as far as is known to the Directors and the
Company, and as confirmed upon reasonable enquiry, the register
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO shows
that the following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which
are required to be disclosed to the Company or the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or
who were, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the
nominal value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other member of the
Company or had an option in respect of such capital were as follows:
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (E)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued) FERR@

Long positions in the shares of the Company ¥ N/NECT '

Number of  Percentage of total

shares of issued shares
Name of Shareholders the Company held of the Company (%)
L S NN HERTEAAF
RERERE g - g=| RBEET DL
HC Technology Capital Company Limited (“HC Technology”) 770,016,722 (a) 67.22
EGREEREBER AR ([ERBE])
Fujian Investment Holdings Company Limited (“FIHC”) 778,068,772 (a) 67.92
ERRESEEERAR([ZEEKRE]D
Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company Limited (“FHIG”) 778,068,772 (a) 67.92
RRERNEX(RE)ARARI(TEREE]
Fujian Tourism Development Group Company Limited (“FTDC”) 778,068,772 (a) 67.92
BRARFEREEERAFR(RBERZERIEEEER
BREFERAE) ([HRFEED
Sino Earn Holdings Limited (“Sino Earn”) 72,553,382 (b) 6.33
ER(BB)ERAERAR(TEE]D
Fujian Huaxing Trust & Investment Company (“FHTI”) 72,553,382 (b) 6.33
RREREEREAT((ERET])
Fujian Huaxing Industrial Company (“FHIC”) 72,553,382 (b) 6.33
REEHEENR([EHEEX])
Fujuan Huaxing Group Company Limited (‘FHGC”) 72,553,382 (b) 6.33
RREERERERAETAR((BRER])
Fujian Investment & Development Group
Company Limited (“FIDG”)
BREAKREAFAESEEERETAR(HEER]) 72,553,382 (b) 6.33
MEBZRAERAA —Z—tEEH
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (B

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes:

() HC Technology and its associates hold 778,068,772 Shares (representing
approximately 67.92% of the issued share capital of the Company) among which (j)
770,016,722 Shares (representing approximately 67.22% of issued share capital
of the Company) are held by HC Technology and (i) 8,052,050 Shares (representing
approximately 0.7% of the issued capital of the company) are held by Pinoge. The
issued share capital of each of HC Technology and Pinoge is 100% beneficially
owned by FIHC, which is in turn 100% beneficially owned by FHIG, which is in
turn 100% beneficially owned by FTDC, a state-owned corporation under the
control and supervision of FISOASAC in the PRC. Pursuant to the SFO, each of
FIHC, FHIG and FTDC is deemed to be interested in 778,068,772 Shares.

(b) Sino Earn beneficially holds 72,553,382 Shares. The issued share capital of Sino
Earn is owned as to 30% by FHTI and 70% by FHIC respectively. Both of FHTI
and FHIC are 100% beneficially owned by FHGC, which is in turn 100%
beneficially owned by FIDG, a state-owned corporation in the PRC under the
control and supervision of FUISOASAC. Pursuant to the SFO, each of FHTI, FHIC,
FHGC and FIDG is deemed to be interested in 72,553,382 Shares.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

There were no contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of
the Group which were entered into or existed during the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme
under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes Ordinance for all its
employees in Hong Kong. All the employees of the Group in Hong
Kong are required to join the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ salaries and are charged to
consolidated income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution
payable in the future for the period ended 31 December 2017.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in China are members of a
state-managed retirement benefit plan operated by the government
of the PRC. The subsidiary is required to contribute a specified
percentage of payroll cost to the retirement benefit scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefit plan is to make the specified contributions.

During the year, the total amounts contributed by the Group to the
schemes and costs charged to the consolidated income statement
represent contribution payable to the schemes by the Group at rates
specified in the rules of the schemes.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Articles of Association of the Company provides that every
Director or other officer of the Company shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)) which he may sustain or incur in or about the execution of
the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto. In addition, the
indemnity agreements made by the Company, which are currently in
force and were in force throughout the financial year, contained
permitted indemnity provisions (as permitted in section 469(2) of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)), for the benefit of the Directors of
the Company. The Company has also taken out and maintained
Director’s liability insurance throughout the year, which provides
appropriate cover for the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries, had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2017.
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Directors’ Report (Continued)
EEHRE (B

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out
in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for
dealings in securities of the Company by the Directors. In response to
specific enquiries made, all Directors confirmed that they had
complied with the required standards of dealings as set out in the
Model Code during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total
issued share capital was held by the public as of the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2017 were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited whose term of office will expire
upon the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting. A
resolution for the re-appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited as the auditors of the Company for the subsequent year is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Liu Hongjian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

ESETRESRGZZBRETH

AR B EBRA £ AR AK 8+ AT E (LT
TAEFETELSRZNEETAD(FES
ANEREFETARAEFRHHERTT
Al- RIFHARBEAR MEAEFERIWNER
FRGERIZETAAENRERLE -

RHLABRERE

BREARAMMEREENRBESEMAAL R
AREBH  RRALRLIHERRASET
PR 48 8 25% ©

¥ 2L B

BE_ Tttt -_A=+—HLEFEZKA
KEBEHEFdMmEFEMARAREZ  KRAD
BRITZERFBFANE EER - AR AR A
BRTZBERBEFAGLERE-FRERBFAX
ZERBEAMEEMARIARARARE
ZAZBED

REESZS

BE

E

B - N\EF=ZA=Z+=H



Corporate Governance Report

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Adapting and adhering to recognised standards of corporate
governance principles and practices has always been one of the top
priorities of the Company. The Board of Directors (“the Board”)
believes that good corporate governance is one of the areas that
leads to the success of the Company and balances the interests of
shareholders, customers and employees, and the Board is devoted
to ongoing enhancements of the efficiency and effectiveness of such
principles and practices.

The Company has fully complied throughout the year 2017 with the
applicable provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied all code
provisions as contained in the Code during the year ended 31
December 2017.

BOARD COMPOSITION AND BOARD
PRACTICES

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating the business
strategy, reviewing and monitoring the business performance of the
Group, approving the financial statements and annual budgets as well
as directing and supervising the management of the Company.
Execution of operational matters and the powers thereof are
delegated to the management by the Board with clear directions.

The Board comprises a total of nine Directors, three of whom are
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. One of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Board composition review will be made regularly to ensure that it has
a balance of expertise, skills and expertise appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Group. In accordance with article
101 of the Company’s Articles of Association, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third shall retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and shall be eligible for re-
election.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

All existing Executive Directors are entitled to a fixed salary per annum
respectively. The remuneration of each Executive Director is subject
to review of the Board with reference to his/her contribution in terms
of time, effort and his/her expertise. The emolument policy for Non-
executive Directors is to ensure that the Non-executive Directors are
adequately compensated for their efforts and the time dedicated to
the Company’s affairs, including their participation in the Board
Committees. Individual directors and senior management are not
involved in the determination of their own remuneration.

Details of remuneration paid to each of the Directors and senior
management during the year are disclosed in note 11 and note 12 to
the financial statements.

All Executive Directors are entitled to be reimbursed for reasonable
expenses incurred during the performance of their duties to the
Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles and duties of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company are carried out by different individuals. The Chairman
of the Board is responsible for the overall strategic formulation,
management and planning of our Group. The Chief Executive Officer
is Ms. Chen Danyun, who is responsible for business development
and day-to-day management and operations of the Group.

CHAIRMAN’S ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY

The Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and the Chief Executive
Officer are separate individuals, to maintain segregation of duties
between the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business. One important role of the
Chairman is to provide leadership for the Board. The Chairman has to
ensure that the Board works effectively, discharges responsibilities,
and that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in
a timely manner. All Directors are consulted about matters proposed
for inclusion in the agenda. The Chairman has delegated to the
Company Secretary the responsibility for drawing up the agenda for
each Board meeting.
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CHAIRMAN'’S ROLE AND RESPONSIBILITY

(Continued)

The Group supports the establishment of good corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Group’s Chief Executive Officer has
been delegated such authority. The Board always acts in the best
interests of the Group, and all Directors have made full and active
contribution to the affairs of the Board. Meeting between the
Chairman and the Non-executive Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors) without the presence of Executive Directors
has been scheduled as at least once a year.

Composition

As at the date of this report, the board of Directors comprises three
Executive Directors namely Mr. LIU Hongjian (Chairman), Ms. CHEN
Danyun and Mr. CHEN Yang, three Non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. FENG Qiang, Mr. ZHANG Fan and Mr. WANG Rulian, and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. LAM Kwong Siu,
Mr. LEUNG Hok Lim and Mr. NG Man Kung. Details of the Chairman
and the other Directors of the Company are set out in the section
“Directors’ Biography” of this report.

With the various experience of both the Executive Directors and the
Non-executive Directors and the nature of the Group’s business, the
board considered that the Directors have a balance of skills and
experience for the business of the Group.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Group adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). A summary of this policy, together with the measurable
objectives set for implementing this policy and the progress made
towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as below.
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Summary of Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognised and embraced the benefits of having a
diverse board to the quality of its performance. The Board Diversity
Policy aimed to set out the approach to achieve diversity on the
board. In designing the board’s composition, board diversity has
been considered from a numbers of measurable aspects including
gender, age, ethnicity, knowledge and length of services. All board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regards for the
benefits of diversity on the board.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services. The ultimate decision will be based
on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to
the board.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition under
diversified perspectives was summarised as follows:
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Designation NED INED
Eanis L B IEHE
Gender Female

L]l egis

Ethnicity Chinese
NS HREIES

Age group Over 61
Fheaa R HRHE61

Length of service

ARTSEHA

1-5 years

1-5 &

Over 10 years
B 10F
| | l L J

INED: Independent Non-executive Director
NED: Non-executive Director
ED:  Executive Director
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The nomination committee has reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to
ensure its effectiveness and considered that the Group achieved the
Board Diversity Policy.

Implementation and Monitoring

The nomination committee reviewed the board’s composition under
diversified perspectives, and monitored the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy annually.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board meets regularly. For the year ended 31 December 2017, it
held four meetings. Regular Board meetings of the year are scheduled
in advance. All notices of the meeting of the Board will be made to
various directors at least 14 days prior to the meeting. The company
secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the memorandum of the
meeting as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Board
papers are circulated not less than three days before the Board
meetings, to enable the Directors to make informed decisions on
matters to be raised at the Board meetings and to offer them
sufficient time to review the documents. The company secretary
normally attends all regular Board meetings to advise on corporate
governance, statutory compliance, accounting and financial matters
when necessary, as to ensure the compliance and maintenance of
sound corporate governance practice. The company secretary shall
prepare minutes and keep record of matters discussed and decisions
resolved at all Board meetings.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships) among members of the Board. All of
them are free to exercise their independent judgment. The Company
has received annual written confirmations from all Independent Non-
executive Directors in respect of their independence during the year
under review pursuant to the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all Independent Non-executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.
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BOARD OF DlRECTORS (Continued)

The Board members meet regularly, to discuss the overall strategy as
well as the operational and financial performance of the Company.
Other Board meetings will be held when necessary. Such Board
meetings involve the active participation, either in person or through
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other electronic means of communication, of a majority of Directors. N fEfRZHE - REHE T — t F+=ZA= ‘]r -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, four regular Board HI|FFERN X R THRUATHEETS L
meetings and a meeting with Non-executive Directors were held and  FF#{TEE e @3 SE= 2 EFR 7 ZZD
the attendance records of individual Directors are set out below: T
Attendance
R E
Board
Director = Exg
Chairman TE
WANG Xiaowu (Resigned on 23 January 2018) ANRR=ZF-NF—A=Z+=HEFF) 2/4
Executive Directors HITEF
CHEN Danyun R = 4/4
CHEN Yang bR % 4/4
Non-executive Directors FHITEF
FENG Qiang 5 58 1/4
ZHANG Fan gk 3/4
WANG Ruilian ERcd 3/4
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIIHNTESE
LAM Kwong Siu MBI 4/4
LEUNG Hok Lim 72 B8 4/4
NG Man Kung RCHE 4/4

A meeting with Non-executive Directors was held in 2017 in which
Non-executive Directors reviewed the future development of the
Group. No Executive Directors took part in any discussion of the
above.

Appropriate notices are given to all Directors in advance for attending
regular and other Board meetings. Meeting agendas and other
relevant information are normally provided to the Directors in advance
of Board meetings. All Directors are consulted to include additional
matters in the agenda for Board meetings.

Directors have access to the advice and services of the company
secretary with a view to ensuring that Board procedures, and all

applicable law, rules and regulations, are followed.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Draft and final versions of the minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comment and records respectively. Minutes of Board meetings are
kept by the Company Secretary and such minutes are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable prior notice by any
Director.

Insurance policy has been arranged to safeguard the interests of the
Directors in case of legal proceedings.

Independent Non-executive Directors and
Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu has been an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company and reappointed seven times with tenure of two
years and expiring on 10 December 2019. Mr. Leung Hok Lim has
been an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
24 September 2004 and was reappointed for the sixth time with
tenure of two years and expiring on 23 September 2018. Mr. Ng Man
Kung has been Independent Non-executive Director of the Company
was reappointed on 30 June 2016 with tenure of two years and
expiry on 29 June 2018. However, their tenure is subject to retirement
by rotation at the Annual General Meeting in compliance with the
amended and restated Articles of Association of the Company and
the Code on Corporate Governance, under which they have to retire
by rotation and make themselves eligible for re-election.

Mr. Feng Qiang, Mr. Zhang Fan and Mr. Wang Ruilian were appointed
as Non-executive Directors on 27 January 2005, 20 May 2015 and
19 October 2015 respectively. All are subject to retirement by rotation
at the Annual General Meeting in compliance with the amended and
restated Articles of Association of the Company.

ERERHE (A

BHRLBIERXARNZERATFTETMA
E=ENHARHEA RS -EF2ERET
BRARWERT RERCLHAMREMNE
ERBHABEABATRENAEREAL
o

$“ﬂ5§m@%%
15 2R -

BAUFHBTEERFHUITES

CEEEEHEHERFR

MEKREERARNCBIFNTES KEZ
FHABME  REEFZELR EEHE
—E-NAF+ZATREER - —TZTHEF A
T HHEE REREEKBA QBB IR
TEENEEFZEAR EEHE_ZT—N
FAAZTZBER KRXHEEER TR

FARA=THEMEZERERRRIBILIEHTT
EF REZEHRAEMFE EEHE—_FT—

NERAZTAR - AT REMEXARF
RIEFTREINERRERERER TR 2R
T-ERRBAFRAG T EFARKESTRRER
BE-

B E RN EERTHEREEDFINR -
ERF—A-t+tHRZ-ZZE—HFRA=-1+H
A—ZZ—AF+A+NBEZETAENTE
EOHAERAEE KBTI REHARAE
BER@AZHAT REREBFASEmHE
LRI E RGBT -

MAEZRARAR —Z-—LHEFH

43



44

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (H)

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Independence of Independent Non-Executive
Directors

The Company has complied with the requirements under Rules 3.10(1),
3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. The Company has received
confirmation of independence from the three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam Kwong Siu, Mr. Leung Hok Lim
and Mr. Ng Man Kung in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Leung Hok Lim have served the Board
of the Company for more than nine years. They have clearly
demonstrated their willingness to exercise independent judgement
and to provide objective challenges to the management. There is no
evidence that length of tenure is having an adverse impact on their
independence. The Board therefore considers that Mr. Lam and Mr.
Leung remain independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

The Board as well as the Nomination Committee have reviewed the
independence of all Independent Non-executive Directors and have
concluded that all of them are independent within the definition of the
Listing Rules. Further, up to the date of this report, the Board is not
aware of the occurrence of any events, which would cause it to
believe that the independence of any of the Independent Non-
executive Directors has been impaired.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board recognises the importance of integrity of financial
information and acknowledges its responsibility for preparing interim
and annual financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
Group’s affairs and its results and cash flows in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and the Companies
Ordinance. In presenting the financial information, as well as price-
sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures as required
by regulations, the Board endeavors to present in a timely manner to
shareholders and other stakeholders a balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospects.
Accordingly, appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, and judgements and estimates made by the
management for financial reporting purpose are prudent and
reasonable. The Directors are also responsible for ensuring that the
Group keeps accounting records which disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and which
enable the preparation of financial statements in accordance with the
Companies Ordinance and the applicable accounting standards. Prior
to the adoption of the financial statements and the related accounting
policies, the relevant financial information is discussed between the
external auditors and the management, and then submitted to the
Audit Committee for review.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board is responsible for the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems and reviews their effectiveness annually.
Such systems are designed to prudently manage the Group’s risks
within an acceptable risk profile. The Board has delegated to
management the implementation of the risk management and internal
control systems as well as the review of relevant financial, operational,
compliance, risk management and internal control procedures.

The management under the supervision of the Board has established
an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks faced by the Group and this process includes
updating the risk management and internal control systems when
there are changes in business, external environment or regulatory
guidelines.

The management assists the Board with the implementation of all
relevant policies and procedures on risk and control by identifying and
assessing the risks faced and designing, operating and monitoring
suitable internal controls to mitigate and control these risks. The key
processes that have been established in reviewing the adequacy and
integrity of the risk management and internal control systems include
the following:

A defined management structure is maintained with specified limits of
authority and control responsibilities, which is designed to (a)
safeguard assets from inappropriate use; (b) maintain proper
accounts; (c) ensure compliance with regulations; and (d) identify,
manage and mitigate key risks to the Group.

The Board reviews the financial controls, risk management and
internal control systems of the Group and any significant internal
control issues identified by the internal audit team, external auditors
and management. It also conducts review of the internal audit
functions with particular emphasis on the scope and quality of
management’s on-going monitoring of risks and of the internal control
systems and the work of the internal audits and independence of the
internal audit team. During its annual review, the Audit Committee
also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and
experience of staff of the Group’s accounting, financial reporting and
internal audit functions, and their training programmes and budgets.
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The internal audit team monitors compliance with policies and
procedures and the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems and highlights significant findings in respect of any
non-compliance. It plays an important role in the Group’s internal
control framework, and provides objective assurance to the Board
that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated in
compliance with the established processes and standards by
performing periodic checking. The internal audit team issues reports
to the Board and relevant management covering various operational
and financial processes of the Group and provides summary reports
to the Audit Committee annually together with the status of
implementation of their recommendation in Audit Committee meeting.
In addition, the internal audit team reviews the continuing connected
transactions of the Group and reports to the Audit Committee.

The Board is satisfied that the risk management and internal control
systems in place covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
for the year under review and up to the date of issuance of this
Annual Report and accounts are reasonably effective and adequate.

Professional Development

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development, the
Company recommends Directors to attend relevant seminars to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. All Directors also
participate in continuous professional development programs, to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
contribution to the Board. A record of the training received by the
respective Directors are kept and updated by the Company Secretary
of the Company.
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The individual training record of each Director received for the year HE_-_ZE—+F+_A=+—HILEE &&
ended 31 December 2017 is summarised below: EESEIZER G mT -

Reading materials and

Attending seminar(s)/ update relating to the

program(s)/conference(s) latest development of

relevant to the business  Listing related regulatory

or directors’ duties requirements

HEABXBIESH HESBELTRA

BExERE 5HE RttBEREERE

2RZER Z BB B

WANG Xiaowu SEE x v
CHEN Danyun PR+ = x v
CHEN Yang PR 15 x 4
FENG Qiang 55 58 x v
ZHANG Fan R x v
WANG Ruilian Fimkk x v
LAM Kwong Siu ME JK * v
LEUNG Hok Lim RE R v v
NG Man Kung Rt x v

All the Directors also understand the importance of continuous S EEZE THIIFEEERREZ2EE N @ &
professional development and are committed to participating any L EFAESE G UWEREEFREZ
suitable training to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. A3 K& FBE o

BOARD COMMITTEES EXEeBETZES

The Board has appointed a number of committees to discharge its ZEZ @ LT B TZE@UHTHERKE -EF
functions. Sufficient resources are provided to enable the Board @ETELZE@HESEHNER  UHMTHA
committees to undertake their specific roles. The respective role, EfK -ZEZeE (IFLZEe@ERNEL - B
responsibilities and activities of each Board committee are set out & Mi/E&HHIE AT -

below:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company was established in 1999.
Currently, it comprises three members, all of whom are Independent
Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Leung Hok Lim who possesses
professional accounting qualification, Mr. Lam Kwong Siu and Mr. Ng
Man Kung. Mr. Leung Hok Lim is the Chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee adopted its the terms of reference
in accordance with the Code issued by the Stock Exchange. The
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process and internal
controls. Two meetings had been held by the Audit Committee during
the year under review. Each Committee meeting was provided with
necessary financial information of the Group for consideration, review
and assessment of major issues.

ERERHE (A

BEREES

ARBAR—NMNANFRIEREZEG - RKE
Bem=-2KEBANK BEHABIUIFNTE
2 BREREREE(RBEEXSFMER) -
MEREERIXHELE RERELERER
ZEEIFR -BERZECCRMEB MR
TR — R BERE BERZESITIER
AEREHIRAAEE 2 BHRRERF LA
MEZE BERZEEROEFEACHETMA
R -BRREECTRUERHLAZAKE
MBEH HREEE B AFIEIETY
MZEBREEH-

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the members of the Audit R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—HEE EZZE
Committee met twice and their attendance is as follows: GRITMAETHE KELFEBROT :
Attendance
Name of member REEB R
LEUNG Hok Lim (Chairman) RERE(FE) 2/2
LAM Kwong Siu R K 2/2
NG Man Kung R HE 2/2

The Audit Committee has reviewed the interim and final financial
results for the year 2017. The Audit Committee considers the financial
statement to be complied with the appropriate financial standards
and the law regulations and with enough disclosure has been made.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2017. The following is a summary of work performed by
the Audit Committee during the year 2017:

(i) reviewed and discussed the annual accounts for 2016 and the
interim accounts for 2017 with the management of the
Company, with recommendations to the Board for approval;

(i)  reviewed the significant audit and accounting issues arising
from the external auditor’s statutory audit of the 2016 annual
accounts and issues arising from the review of the 2017 interim
accounts;

ENEERCENAREAET T tEFY
RREEHELE - BREEERA RER
RGAMAE LR AR BT BT R
B -

REBEE-FT—+tF+-A=+—BLEFE &%
BZEERTTMAER - UTEZHEZEE
R-ZFB—EFFRARITH LA

) BARFREEERASERNB_-_T—RF
FERER-Z-LFFETHER X
MEEEEHES T AR

i) WMAEIEREME T -RFFER
BN EEBERMELENERERLES
M RAEN -+ FFEFHEKAE
i 2 £ /Y R

MAEZRARAR —Z-—LHEFH

49



50

Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
EEER®E ()

(i)  reviewed the impact of the new and revised accounting
standards on the Company;

(iv)  reviewed the external auditor’s audit strategy and approach;

(v)  reviewed the non-audit services provided by the external auditor
in 2017;

(vi)  met with the external auditor to discuss issues from the audits
and any other matters the external auditor might raise;

(vii) reviewed the Internal Audit objectives and approval of the
Annual Internal Audit Report;

(viii) reviewed the findings and recommendations of the Internal
Audit team on the audits carried out on the principal activities of
the Group during the year 2017;

(ix) reviewed the effectiveness of the internal control systems;

(x)  reviewed the relevant sections in the Corporate Governance
Report for the year ended 31 December 2017 concerning the
Audit Committee;

(xi)  reviewed the adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and
experience; and

(xii) reviewed the continuing connected transactions and their
annual caps.

The minutes of the Audit Committee meetings are prepared by the
secretary of the Audit Committee with details of all matters considered
by the attendees and of decisions reached, including any concern
raised by the attendees and dissenting views expressed. The final
version of the minutes is sent to the attendees for their records. The
minutes are open for inspection by the Committee members and the
Board members.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
them are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Remuneration
Committee members are set out on page 2 of the annual report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate
transparent procedures for setting remuneration policies and
packages for Directors and the senior management of the Group. Its
duties include:

° Reviewing and recommending to the Board the remuneration
packages of Executive and Non-executive Directors of the

Group

° Reviewing the appropriateness of compensation for Directors of

ERERHE (A

FHNEZE e 2BERH —EAEZHENE
FrAGIEASBESR RS RE B3 B R
RMTR - FHEZESHBAERT

s RNAKEBHITERIFATESNHHNS
KA AEESRHEES

BAAEEEETNHENEERE

the Group

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the members of the R-ZT—+F+_A=+—"HFEE FMEE
Remuneration Committee met once and their attendance is as &@®RiT— K e@xm KEHBEBILWOT :
follows:

Attendance
Name of member RERE HEXRE
LAM Kwong Siu (Chairman) WEIK(EE) 1/1
LEUNG Hok Lim Y DES 1/1
NG Man Kung R 1/1

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2017. The following is a summary of work
performed by the Remuneration Committee during the year 2017,
including:

The principal duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are
not limited to, making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and
senior management (who are also executive directors of the
Company), reviewing and approving the special remuneration
packages of all executive directors with reference to corporate goals
and objectives resolved by the Board from time to time and
determining, with delegated responsibility, the remuneration packages
of individual executive directors. The Company has adopted written
terms of reference for the Remuneration Committee that clearly define
the role, authority and function of the Remuneration Committee. The
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on
both the Exchange’s and the Company’s websites.

The Company has not adopted any share option scheme. The
emoluments of Directors are determined based on the duties and
responsibilities of each Director. The Directors’ fees were reviewed by
the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
considered the fees reasonable in view of the Directors’
responsibilities.
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The remuneration of the members of the senior management of the
Group by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out

—EtF T A=t BLEFEREGE
FoAEBEEMEEERENMESFIMT

below:
Number of
persons
Remuneration bands & & E AE
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001 7 T £ 1,000,000 7% JT 3

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 11 and note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee currently comprises 3 members, all of
whom are Independent Non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee members are out on page 2 of the annual report.

[ts duties include:

° Reviewing the composition of the Board, including its structure,
size and diversity at least annually to ensure that it has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group

° Recommending any proposed change to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategies

° Considering and recommending to the Board suitably qualified
persons to become a member of the Board, monitor the
succession planning of Directors and assess the independence
of Independent Non-executive Directors

° Give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy when identifying
suitably qualified candidates to become members of the Board,
and the board will review the Board Diversity Policy, so as to
develop and review measurable objectives for the implementing
the Board Diversity Policy and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives

52 Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the members of the
Nomination Committee met one time and their attendance is as
follows:

ERERHE (A

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—RHBFEE REZE
GET-RGF RELEBRAT :

Attendance
Name of member RERE HEXRE
NG Man Kung (Chairman) R (FE) 1/1
LAM Kwong Siu MREJK 1/1
LEUNG Hok Lim 2 5 hy

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2017. The following is a summary of work performed
by the Nomination Committee during the year 2017, including:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

reviewed the Company’s policy for nomination of Directors;

reviewed procedures for appointment of new Directors and
plans for orderly succession;

reviewed the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy of the
Company;

reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board of
the Company;

reviewed and recommended to the Board the nomination of the
membership of committee of the Company;

recommended re-election of the retiring directors at the annual
general meeting of the Company; and

assessed independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company.

I
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EEZtF+-_A=+—HLEFE &
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(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS TtEE

=]
The Board is responsible for the corporate governance functions with ZEE@ B8 F X EERee WA VB E
the following duties:

o to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on BT R A AP EEARERE
corporate governance and make recommendations on changes BoOUHESENE IR EZ
and updating;

o to review and monitor the training and continuous professional e B NEREENZILREETERRE
development of directors and senior management;

o to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on e R NERARQNREETEEZNEER
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; EHFHEHBERER

o to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and e HE e NEREANEENEENGR

compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and ST RERFMNAE)
directors;

o to review the Company’s compliance with the Code and e F NN E TFTEEEATHNBR R
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report; and RONEEARETELEOERE &

. such other corporate governance duties and functions set out HINCEEARTIHNESTEAEENZ
in the Code (as amended from time to time) for which the Board ZHMAEETLBE LB TEE

are responsible. HIE
The Company periodically reviews its corporate governance practices AR AT FEH BT HDEETAEE  UEERZE
) &

to ensure they continue to meet the requirements of the Code during N T —+E—&5F4
the year of 2017. LRI EEEARTAMNATE
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
potential legal actions against its Directors.

COMPANY SECRETARY

As at 31 December 2017, the Company Secretary of the Company,
Mr. Chan Tao Ming Alex, fulfiled the requirement under Rules 3.28
and 3.29 of the Listing Rules. As an employee of the Company, the
Company Secretary supports the Board, ensures good information
flow within the Board and Board policy and procedures are followed;
advises the Board on governance matters, facilitates induction and,
monitors the training and continuous professional development of
Directors. He had attained not less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year under review.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has reviewed a service plan from HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited regarding their independence and objectivity
and had a meeting with HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, the
external auditors of the Company, to discuss the scope of their audit
and approve the scope.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 were audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
whose term of office will expire upon the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to
the Board that HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited be re-appointed
as the auditors of the Company at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting of the Company.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

An analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit
services, which included taxation, other review and advisory services,
provided by the auditors and its common control entity during the
year ended 31 December 2017 is as follows:

¥ B4 BT B &

BHE-T— t¢+ A=1—HLFE %%
b Ko B R A [R) — 458 Il M 1) 0 ST M B 1R A0 AR B

R FOFZERT BB HMEHN R
AR 2MEWT

HK$
BT

Audit fee =R

650,000

The auditors’ reporting responsibility is set out on pages 64 to 70 of
this annual report.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
the Shareholders and investors. A shareholders’ communication
policy setting out the principles of the Company in relation to
Shareholders’ communications, with the objectives of ensuring a
transparent and timely communication with Shareholders via various
means, has been established.

The Company’s Annual General Meetings (“AGM”) are valuable forum
for the Board to communicate directly with the Shareholders and to
answer questions Shareholders may raise. Separate resolutions are
proposed at general meetings for each substantial issue, including
the re-election and election of individual Directors. The detailed
procedures of conducting a poll are explained to Shareholders at the
commencement of the AGM, to ensure that Shareholders are familiar
with such procedures.

The Company’s last AGM (2016 AGM”) was held on Tuesday, 23
May 2017 at Ballroom, 1st Floor, South Pacific Hotel, 23 Morrison Hill
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong. All the resolutions proposed at that
meeting were approved by shareholders of the Company by poll.
Details of the poll results are available on the Company’s website at
www.fujianholdings.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

The attendance record of the Directors at the 2016 AGM and
Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) is set out below:

ERERHE (A

EER B AFERTREAR RRRERIAR
WO RSB T

EGM AGM
Directors 2= BREESIAE RBRERBEREZ
WANG Xiaowu FNER v %
CHEN Danyun R ST E v/ v
CHEN Yang R % v/ v
FENG Qiang 508 x v
ZHANG Fan R A x x
WANG Ruilian T IR v/ x
LAM Kwong Siu E JK L7 %
LEUNG Hok Lim 2 B v v
NG Wan Kung R v v

A key element of effective communication with shareholders and
investors is the prompt and timely dissemination of information in
relation to the Group. The Company commits to report to the
Shareholders of the Company the Group’s corporate information in a
timely and punctual way through notifying or mailing to all
shareholders via press release, Interim Report and Annual Report.
The circular of the AGM will be distributed to all Shareholders at least
21 days prior to the meeting, which set out the requirements and the
procedure of the vote and the relevant details of other proposed
resolutions. The printed copies of the Group’s annual report and
interim report will be dispatched to all the shareholders.

The Company keeps on promoting investor relations and enhancing
communication with the existing Shareholders and potential investors.
It welcomes suggestions from investors, stakeholders and the public.
Enquiries to the Board or the Company may be sent by post to the
Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company’s articles of association during
the year ended 31 December 2017. A copy of the latest consolidated
version of amended and restated Articles of Association of the
Company is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders of
the Company as required to be disclosed pursuant to the mandatory
disclosure requirement under Paragraph O of the Code:

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on
requisition by Shareholders

In accordance with section 566 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter
622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”),
Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders having a right to vote at general meetings may request
the Directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting (“EGM”).
The request(s) must state the general nature of the business to be
dealt at the meeting and may include the text of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at the meeting. The
request(s) may consist of several documents in like form and may be
sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic form which
must be authenticated by the person or persons making it.

In accordance with sections 567 and 568 of the Companies
Ordinance, if the Directors do not within 21 days after the date on
which they are subject to the requirement under section 566 of the
Companies Ordinance to convene an EGM for a day not more than
28 days after the date on which the notice convening the EGM is
given, the Shareholder(s) concerned, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene an EGM, provided that the EGM so convened
shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months from the said date.

The EGM convened by shareholders shall be convened in the same

manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which general meetings are
to be convened by the Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

Procedures for directing shareholders’ enquiries
to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing through the Company Secretary whose contact
details are as follows:

The Company Secretary

Fujian Holdings Limited

Room 3306-3308, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
200 Connaught Road Central

Email: info@fujianholdings.com

Tel. No.: +852 2810 9222

Fax No.: +852 2868 9930

The Company Secretary shall forward the shareholders’ enquiries and
concerns to the board of Directors and/or relevant Board Committees
of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the Shareholders’
questions.

Proposing a resolution at an annual general
meeting

Shareholder(s) may request the Company to give, to all Shareholders
entitled to receive notice of AGM, notice of a resolution that may
properly be moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting
pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance, if they:

(@ represent at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
Shareholders who have a right to vote on the resolution at the

annual general meeting to which the requests relate; or

(b)  are not less than 50 Shareholders who have a right to vote on
the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.

The request(s):

(@  may be sent to the Company in hard copy form or in electronic
form;

(b)  must identify the resolution of which notice is to be given;
(c)  must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and
(d)  must be received by the Company not later than six weeks

before the AGM to which the request(s) relate; or if later, the
time at which notice is given of that meeting.
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PROPOSING A CANDIDATE FOR ELECTION
AS A DIRECTOR AT AGM

Pursuant to article 105 of the articles of association of the Company,
if a Shareholder intends to nominate a person other than the retiring
Directors for Director at a general meeting, he/she shall deposit the
following documents to the Company’s registered office during the
period commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice of
such meeting and ending no later than seven days prior to the date
appointed for such general meeting, and the length of the notice
period shall be at least seven days:

(@ a written notice of such proposal for the attention of the
Company Secretary, signed by the shareholder who is qualified
to attend and vote at the general meeting;

(b)  biographical details of the candidate as set out in Rule 13.51(2)(a)
to (x) of the Listing Rules; and

(c) a written consent signed by the candidate indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar: Tricor Standard
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong.

Other enquiries or comments raised by any Shareholder can be
mailed to the Board at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong at
Room 3306-08, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong or sent through email to
info@fujianholdings.com.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company’s management believes that risk management is an
essential component of the Group’s administrative structure. The
management assists the Board in evaluating material risk exposure
existing in the Group’s business, including investment risk, interest
rate risk, liquidity risk etc, and participates in designing and
formulating appropriate risk management and internal control
measures, and to ensure its implementation in daily operational
management.

The management considers that the investment risk management
measures provide guarantee to the Group through its way of seeking
new development opportunities, as to secure reasonable return in
every investment, to reduce investment risks and to avoid possible
loss attributable to investments.

The Group’s risk management towards liquidity aims to ensure that
under all circumstances there exists sufficient capital to fulfill
repayment obligations of all debts due, to maintain good
creditworthiness, to finance reasonable investment opportunities and
to fuel business development. The Group’s accounting department is
responsible for daily financial activities and monitoring liquidity position
from time to time to cope with business operation of the Company.

The Board had conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems once during
the year ended 31 December 2017 which covered financial,
operational, compliance procedural and risk management functions
and had considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function. In light of the size and
scale of the Group’s businesses, the Board is also delegated with the
responsibilities for the internal control of the Group and for reviewing
its effectiveness. As such, the Group currently does not have an
internal audit team. The Board will review and consider to establish
such department as and when it thinks necessary.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERRE (H)

The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence and
for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has therefore
made continued efforts to uplift its quality of corporate governance. It
has established a highly effective system of internal controls and
adopted a series of measures to ensure its safety and effectiveness.
As a result, the Group is able to safeguard its assets and protect the
interests of its Shareholders.

The Board is of the view that the systems of internal control and risk
management are effective and there are no irregularities,
improprieties, frauds or other deficiencies that suggest material
deficiency in the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system.

CORPORATE MONITOR

The Board is responsible for monitoring the Group’s overall corporate
reporting process and control system, while the corporate reporting
standard is handled by the accounting department, which makes
regular review of resources allocation and financial reporting system
properly. Compliance with Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
the Listing Rules, SFO and other applicable laws and regulations are
handled by the Company Secretary. The Company’s management
meets with the Executive Directors regularly to review and brief the
reporting system, and the Audit Committee annually to review and
brief the reporting system.

A package of detailed materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of the Directors of the Company is provided to each
newly appointed Director of the Company, in which it is especially
specified the applicable rules and regulations (including the Listing
Rules) that the first time appointed Directors of the Company shall
notice and understand.

In respect of the securities transactions made by Directors and
relevant employees, the Company has adopted Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules, the Model Code, as its own Code of conduct regarding
the standard for securities transactions. Printed copies of the Model
Code have been distributed to each Director and relevant employees
of the Group as stipulated therein. Having made specific enquires of
all Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the standards set out therein.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
TEERKS ()

Employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished price- %2575 7] 82 %15 75 9 4~ 5= [ ok 45 I 32 B% (B g%
sensitive information about the Group are also subject to compliance B KB ZEEBINMBETIERANBD N IZAESTHE

with guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code. FRZIEBl .

On behalf of the Board REEFE

Liu Hongjian Ly =

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018 BEE ZE-N\F=ZA=-+=H
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Independent Auditors’ Report
B A% B RS

Bl #7 & 3t 65 = % o A R A A
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

HLB

TO THE MEMBERS OF
FUJIAN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fujian
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 166, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2017, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA'’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

HRESER
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ARG AEYERENBIA P RAEZENEE -
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMESTHEHENEELTR

Carrying amount of property and leasehold land used in the Group’s hotel operation segment

Refer to Notes 14 and 15 to the consolidated financial statements
FEBWEEEB B2 YFFAHAE L EARE 25
FERERGE B HREP M T 148215

We identified the carrying amounts of property and leasehold land used
in the Group’s hotel operation segment as a key audit matter due to the
management’s judgements associated with review of the recoverable
amounts of assets.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had a property and leasehold
land used in the Group’s hotel operation segment with a carrying
amounts of HK$19,388,419 and HK$14,835,881 respectively.

Significant management judgement is required to determining the
recoverable amounts based on a value in use calculation and a
discount rate of 7.74% per annum.
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Our procedures in relation to carrying amounts of
property and leasehold land used in the Group’s
hotel operation segment included:

— Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer engaged by
the management and the valuation specialist
engaged by us;

— Assessing the methodologies used by the
external valuer engaged by the management to
estimate the value in use calculation;

— Evaluating the appropriateness of information
and estimation used in the financial forecasts
provided by the management;

— Engaging a valuation specialist to assist us to
assess the methodologies and key assumptions
adopted in the valuation for estimating the value
in use; and

— Checking the accuracy and relevance of the
input data provided by management for the
estimation of the value in use.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

HRETER

FARETEEm

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMESTHPEENEELTR

Valuation of investment properties

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements
REYFETE

BRHREE I BEREA P T16

We identified the valuation of investment properties as a key audit
matter due to the management’s judgement associated with
determining the fair value.

The Group has various investment properties in Hong Kong. Such
investment properties are measured at fair value and the aggregate
carrying amount of these investment properties was HK$223,300,000
as at 31 December 2017.

Significant estimation and judgement are required by management to
determine the fair values of the investment properties. To support
management’s determination of the fair value, the Group engaged an
external valuer to perform valuations on these assets at the end of the
reporting period.
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Our procedures in relation to valuation of
investment properties included:

— Evaluating the objectivity, independence and
competency of the external valuer engaged by
the management and the valuation specialist
engaged by us;

— Obtaining understanding of the approach and
valuation methodology adopted;

— Assessing whether the investment properties
were valued on a consistence basis;

— Engaging a valuation specialist to assist us to
assess the methodologies and assumptions
adopted in the valuation;

— Checking the accuracy of the fair value
calculation prepared by the external valuer; and

— Assessing the adequacy of disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for no other purpose. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and

the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.
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Independent Auditors’ Report (Continued)
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEM ENTS (Continued)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Mr. Kwok Kin Leung.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwok Kin Leung
Practising Certificate Number: P0O5769

Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
REBEEREMEZEKRR R

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (nHK Dollars) 2 — 2 —t &+ - A=+—B It FEE (ABTIIR)

Revenue

Other income

Other gains and losses
Employee benefits expense

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Amortisation of prepaid lease payment

Share of profit/(loss) of associates

iy 3

H g A
Htblhm R B8
ETHEAXH

ME BERRBITE

ANEHERE#RE

EEBERTZBE(FHE)

Other operating expenses Hitt K& & H

Profit before tax R %% A 2 A

Income tax (expense)/credit e (XH) Ex
Profit for the year BEEBA

Other comprehensive income/(expense) H2mEUkzE (B x)

ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to fr 78 A E S X 252 2B -

profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translating RMEBINEBEEZ
foreign operations BN =R
Other comprehensive income/(expense) ZXNEEHM2EWZE (BAxX)
for the year, net of income tax MNERFTEH
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AEEZEWE (BxX) A%

for the year

2017
—E—tF

35,828,766

2,844,239

5,998,913

(13,018,480)

(4,947,450)

(1,874,007)

1,786,851

(17,293,391)
9,325,441

(1,089,340)
8,236,101

7,335,530

7,335,530

15,571,631

RBERARAE

2016
—=

— =

28,827,481

1,122,232

8,976,484

(12,024,609)

(5,501,843)

(1,874,007)

(354,057)

(17,657,606)
1,514,075

41,207
1,655,282

(1,947,266)

(1,947,266)

(391,984)

“E-LFER
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
mEeBERREMEE KSR (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) 8 —Z—t &+ -_A=+—BILFEE (UABE LI R)

Notes 2017 2016
Bt & —E—+tF —E—RF
Profit for the year attributable to: KEEBRNDTR :
Owners of the Company VIN/NEETE= P =N 7,947,117 1,665,501
Non-controlling interests FEPE AR 7 2 288,984 (110,219)
8,236,101 1,655,282
Total comprehensive income/(expense) AEE2EWZE (BX)
attributable to: DR :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIESF SN 15,288,008 (276,453)
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR 7 2 283,623 (115,531)
15,571,631 (391,984)
Earnings per share FRER
Basic (HK cents per share) HEAR (KRB 13 0.69 0.18
Diluted (HK cents per share) 8 (ZRBMN) 13 0.69 0.18

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
HREMBRRR

At 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) R =ZF—+ &+ =-A=+—8 (AHETIIR)

Notes
B 5
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment LE N 14
Prepaid lease payment A A E 8 15
Investment properties wE Y 16
Finance lease receivable B & T & E U AR X 17
Interest in associates KB & QT2 s 19
Deferred tax assets FEEFIAE E 24
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 20
Finance lease receivable & T & e R X 17
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E e UL BR 3k 21
Cash and bank balances BE RIRITHES 22
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H M FE T BR 5K 23
Tax payable J& 1~ ¢ T8
Net current assets REBEEFEE
Total assets less current liabilities HEERARBARG
Capital and reserves EAXRHE
Share capital & X 25
Reserves ke
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 78 A B35 5 A JE {5 # 25
Non-controlling interests FEPE B #E 5
Total equity BAEZ AT
Non-current liabilities IRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EETIR A E 24

The consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 166 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23

March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by:

Liu Hongijian

B4t
Director

EF

2017
—E-tF

29,888,237
14,835,881
223,300,000

99,639,981
1,894,269

369,558,368

196,728

2,176,582
44,276,066

46,649,376

9,656,595
1,016,460

10,673,055
35,976,321
405,534,689

898,839,029
(497,581,005)

401,258,024

401,258,024

4,276,665
405,534,689

2016
—=

— =

33,953,033
16,709,888
218,500,000
46,394,116
15,361,501
1,894,269

332,812,807

223,214
9,602,409
2,491,924

100,039,994

112,257,541

11,121,764

11,121,764
101,135,777
433,948,584

898,839,029
(613,266,025)

385,573,004
43,702,033

429,275,037

4,673,547
433,948,584

BExeRr T \F=ZA-_t=HE#HELRE
THRBEBZRAEMBERRPENEAEI6R

Chen Danyun

R E
Director

EF

MAEZRARAR —Z—LtHFFH
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) 8 —Z—t &+ -_A=+—BILFEE (UABE LI R)

Attributable to owners of the Company

AARFEAEMN
Attributable
to non-
Share Translation Accumulated controlling
capital reserve losses Sub-total interests Total
2 B R
BAx  BRERE RitEE PNEE EERES Gl
(Note 25)
(P45 25)
Balance at 1 January R-ZZE-—XRE
2016 —HA—H 747,839,049  (8,475,208) (504,514,364) 234,849,477 — 234,849,477
Contribution from non- HIEERERTE
controlling interests - - - - 43,817,564 43,817,564
Recognition of equity-settled T :2 LA B% 15 75 =,
share-based payments SARE:0E- ¢ 150,999,980 — — 150,999,980 — 150,999,980
150,999,980 = — 150,999,980 43,817,564 194,817,544
Profit/(loss) for the year REERHN/(BB) - — 1,665,501 1,665,501 (110,219) 1,555,282
Other comprehensive expense 78 4 € H fh 2 &
for the year 553 —  (1,941,954) — (1,941,954) (5,312)  (1,947,266)
Total comprehensive AFEEHERY
expense for the year B —  (1,941,954) 1,665,501 (276,453) (115,531) (391,984)
Balance at 31 December R=-Z—X&
2016 and at 1 January +ZA=+-HERK
2017 —ZE—tF—-HA—H 898,839,029 (10,417,162) (502,848,863) 385,573,004 43,702,033 429,275,037
Profit for the year KEEZRBF — — 7,947 117 7,947,117 288,984 8,236,101
Other comprehensive income/ 78 4 € £ fh 2 &
(expense) for Wi/ (F)
the year — 7,340,891 — 7,340,891 (5,361) 7,335,530
Total comprehensive AEEZE
income for the year Wy 55 a5 - 7,340,891 7,947,117 15,288,008 283,623 15,571,631
Loss on deemed disposal of & & — K B
a subsidiary UNGIA St — 397,012 — 397,012  (43,985,656) (43,588,644)
Balance at 31 December R®R=Z—+t%
2017 +=B=+—H 898,839,029  (2,679,259) (494,901,746) 401,258,024 — 401,258,024

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) #EZ —Z —+tF +=—A=+—HBILFE ABTIIR)

2016
—E-RF
Cash flows from operating activities REEBCHERE
Profit for the year NEE BT 8,236,101 1,665,282
Adjustments for: FHEIER -
Income tax expense/(credit) FriEfith(E%) 1,089,340 (41,207)
Bank interest income HRITFE M A (246,835) (797,675)
Share of (profit)/loss of associates FEEmEBE QR Z (&F),/
& E (1,786,851) 354,057
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment T8 15 FH & 2T 6 1,874,007 1,874,007
Depreciation of property, plant and Y% BELMREZITE
equipment 4,947,450 5,501,843
Net increase in fair value of investment WEMER R EE LN
properties (4,800,000) (9,390,500)
Gain arising on change in fair value of EXESmEE(BBUERER)Z
financial assets designated as at fair value ARERE 2 Wwm(BEABR
through profit or loss B ARBARE) (760,846) (473,198)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYE BMELREREZ
equipment EBiEER 7,893 4,735
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE—XMBRAFEE 402,324 =
Impairment loss recognised on other HEWER 2 BEBEER
receivables = 2,053
Movements in working capital LEESF PR KERS 8,962,583 (1,410,603)
Decrease in inventories FERD 26,486 101,452
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 N H i FE Y8R 5k
receivables B (35 A0) 347,836 (474,521)
Increase in finance lease receivable Bh & T 5 pE UL BR FRIE N = (55,896,525)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 K H b FE T BR K
other payables CRl 4>,/ 48 hn (765,251) 2,857,121
Cash from/(used in) from operating activities ~ &R & % #&IBEm A (Z H) 8,571,654 (64,828,076)
Income tax paid EXNHMERH (309,523) =
Interest received 2 F E 975,187 1,144,420

MABZERERAR -Z-—LtFFR
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

REBRTRERE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) 8 —Z—t &+ -_A=+—BILFEE (UABE LI R)

2017
—ZE—tF

Net cash from/(used in) operating activities

REEXEBRESRA(XH)FHE

9,237,318

Cash flows from investing activities

Payments for property, plant and equipment
Payments for investment property
Cash outflow from deemed disposal of
a subsidiary
Contribution of investment in an associate

REXBZRERE

BEVE BELRE
BEZREME
BAEHE —KHEQ A
REm
BeENmERITE

(168,895)

(36,263,047)
(30,735,000)

(67,166,942)

(57,929,624)

100,039,994
2,165,696

Net cash used in investing activities REXK - BRELHBE
Cash flows from financing activities RETH HERE
Contribution from non-controlling interests JEERERTE
Net cash from financing activities MEITE2EHSRAFE
Net decrease in cash HeRReEERD RE
and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents FHOzEERREEE
at the beginning of year
Effects of foreign exchange rate changes ExREE s &
Cash and cash equivalents FRHECHRERESEE
at the end of year, representing BETEERRS

bank balances and cash

44,276,066

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

2016
—m

— =

(63,678,656)

(4,115,659)
(12,659,520)

(16,775,179)

43,817,564
43,817,564

(26,636,271)

127,321,976
(645,711)

100,039,994



1.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

GENERAL

Fujian Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is incorporated in
Hong Kong as a public limited company and its shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its immediate holding company is HC Technology
Capital Company Limited, a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and its ultimate holding company is Fujian
Tourism Development Group Company Limited (“FTDC”), a
state-owned corporation in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company is Room 3306-08, 33/F,
West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are investment holding,
property investment in Hong Kong and hotel operations in the
PRC.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is also the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses
Amendments to HKFRS 12 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior years and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

— )

MAEERERAFTTARA]) A —FKRK
FEFMEKZZ AR ETm AR - ERHR
EAEBARGHARAR(BRAT]) £
M- HEEEERARAERNRREGR
NAl TREBRERZEER YL ZOERE
BRRERAGAGBEAREEREE
ERARNEBEREAKRNEEREEAR
EERARREEE]D  HHAEZEA
PE -AQAEMPERENEZ L E MU
BEB T BT 2005 = = O 7 FE33E
3306208 % °

2

ARRAREMBRABA(SABEAIRNER])
TE2REREER URBEZOERE
KA BEERER -

RAVMBBRERUNARRZWETER BT

Z275 -

RANF REETEBUB
ﬁﬁ%%@%%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ

RAEAFERBENR 2 EBYE
HERZEIT AR

AEERAEFEEREANTHEES

AR AEMBEM BB BREERZ

CHENE

BEGERETR WEE
ZAEFT R

EEgHERE 125 RAREHRBEER
ZAERT AN TR IAE E

BEMBREREL (ERBEEMBERE

FA125 ZBET AR B - F— PO
E T NF

B 2 R
z—#5

RAFEERAZEEEVBREEL 2
ERIAN  HAKERAFERBEFREZ
BBRBERRAR, SR ZEEE B R
RSB BBELERERERTE -
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
HK(FRIC) - Int 22

HK(FRIC) - Int 23

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 9

Amendments to
HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’
Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

Leases?

Insurance Contracts®

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration'

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments?

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions'

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts'

Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers’

Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures®

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle'

Transfers of Investment Property’

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycles?

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
= e B A% R 3R B A (AE)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

1

2
3
4

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, financial liabilities, general
hedge accounting and impairment requirements for financial
assets.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of
HKFRS 9 are required to be subsequently measured at
amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have
contractual cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of
subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that
are held within a business model whose objective is
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”). All
other financial assets are measured at their fair value at
subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to
present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other
comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

2

N
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: (Continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the
effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the
financial liability designated as fair value through profit or
loss is presented in profit or loss.

for non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows and
discounted at the financial liabilities’ original effective
interest rate. Transaction costs or fees incurred are
adjusted to the carrying amount of the modified financial
liabilities and are amortised over the remaining term. Any
adjustment to the carrying amount of the financial liability
is recognised in profit or loss at the date of modification.
Currently, the Group revises the effective interest rates for
non-substantial modification of financial liabilities with no
gain/loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: (Continued)

o in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an
incurred credit loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to account for
expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no
longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

o the new general hedge accounting requirements retain
the three types of hedge accounting mechanisms
currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS 9, greater
flexibility has been introduced to the types of transactions
eligible for hedge accounting, specifically broadening the
types of instruments that qualify for hedging instruments
and the types of risk components of non-financial items
that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
retrospective quantitative effectiveness test has been
removed. Enhanced disclosure requirements about an
entity’s risk management activities have also been
introduced.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9: (Continued)

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of the expected credit loss model of HKFRS 9 will
result in earlier provision of credit losses which are not yet
incurred in relation to the Group’s financial assets measured at
amortised costs and other items that subject to the impairment
provisions upon application of HKFRS 9 by the Group.

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if
the expected credit loss model were to be applied by the
Group, the accumulated amount of impairment loss to be
recognised by the Group as at 1 January 2018 would be slightly
increased as compared to the accumulated amount recognised
under HKAS 39 mainly attributable to expected credit losses
provision on trade and other receivables. Such further
impairment recognised under expected credit loss model would
reduce the opening retained profits and likely increase the
deferred tax assets at 1 January 2018.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the HKFRS 9 will have a material effect on the
amounts recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

Y F R R A

BEMBHREENFEIOREHT A
(#0)

BEEUMBHREERFIRNEERTH
it (&)

—RME ARAREZEHRERBEFEMB
BEENFIRMNEREEERRAKE
HRERUEERE  ZEBEREHRRAAN
SEREHEKNAREMBERFENSRE
BEEAAGASERBEAYBRSE
A R 55 95 1R hUR (B B 4 -

REARBEZTNFE  WAKEREBRE
HEEBEEN  AEENHER TN\
F-A-BERNREERRTSER
RIRBEEE S EREIRERH R &t
TREMBEN T2RARMES REM
EURBEELEREEBEBEME - RIER
HEEFEEAERNERE —TRE
RERRS —F—N\F—A— B8 HONKF
RN

ARRESBEREEM B RS LR
FOMITEHAKEGRE M B HRERAER
CERELEBEATE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the standard
introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer;
Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
Step 3: Determine the transaction price;

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract;

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the
goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to HKFRS 15 in
relation to the identification of performance obligations, principal
versus agent considerations, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 15 in the future may result in more disclosures,
however, the directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of HKFRS 15 will have a material impact on the
timing and amounts of revenue recognised in the respective
reporting periods.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS
17 Leases and the related interpretations when it becomes
effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on the
basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a customer.
Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a
right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have to be
recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

R-ZZE—RF BEEGHAMASRMHER
A EHEML  TRRELHELFFAIER
HEol BBV B BREERNFIGRNES -

ARREZEY RARIBEEEVBHR
SREAFGRALSHIAEENES
MBERRTHNEE2RSERBREERE
HAEMN B LA EMEAHERYK
REZENFISHHOTZE -

BEMBHRELZEAEI6HHEE

EREVBHmEEAFEI6HE /BN EEA
RABANHEZHEREFEESA—
Ee B - FEWBEREERF165%
REMEGRRE B G ERE17RMA
ElHERE-

EBEVBmMEEFIRERIFABFE
ERTHEFPEHRRES>EERREA
H-BREHHERHEREEEN  £2
HHOEREHENZRAEASTE
B YHAHABARAEEHERER
EREEEMMABAGBNEABTK -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease liability is
initially measured at the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability is
adjusted for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the classification of
cash flows, the Group currently presents upfront prepaid lease
payments as investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands
for owned use and those classified as investment properties
while other operating lease payments are presented as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which will be presented as
financing and operating cash flows respectively by the Group.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an asset
and a related finance lease liability for finance lease arrangement
and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where the
Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16 may result in
potential changes in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets separately or
within the same line item at which the corresponding underlying
assets would be presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease either as an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.

E

“E—+tFFTZA=+—HIEFEUUETITR)

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$1,378,405 as disclosed in
note 29. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon application
of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-of-use asset and
a corresponding liability in respect of all these leases unless
they qualify for low value or short-term leases.

Furthermore, the application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as
indicated above. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until the directors
complete a detailed review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the other new and revised HKFRSs will have a
material impact on the results and finance positions of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions
and Advance Consideration

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22 addresses how to determine the “date of
transaction” for the purpose of determining the exchange rate
to use on initial recognition of an asset, expense or income,
when consideration for that item has been paid or received in
advance in a foreign currency which resulted in the recognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability (for example a
non-refundable deposit or deferred revenue).

The interpretation specifies that the date of transaction is the
date on which the entity initially recognises the non-monetary
assets or non-monetary liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple payments
or receipts in advance, the Interpretation requires an entity to
determine the date of transaction for each payment or receipt
of advance consideration.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions

The amendments clarify classification and measurement of
cash-settled share-based payment under certain specific
circumstances and share-based payments in which the Group
is required by local tax law or regulation to withhold certain
number of equity instruments for settlement of the employee’s
tax obligation. The directors of the Company do not anticipate
that the application of Amendments to HKFRS 2 will have a
material impact on the classification and measurement of the
Group’s share-based payment transactions.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments revise existing requirements in HKFRS 9
regarding termination rights in order to allow measurement at
amortised cost (or, depending on the business model, at fair
value through other comprehensive income) in the case of
negative compensation payments (where the lender has to
make a settlement payment in the event of termination by the
borrower).

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments to HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial
Statements and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures deal with situations where there is a sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture. Specifically, the amendments state that gains or
losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary that
does not contain a business in a transaction with an associate
or a joint venture that is accounted for using the equity method,
are recognised in the parent’s profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investors’ interests in that associate or joint
venture. Similarly, gains and losses resulting from the
remeasurement of investments retained in any former subsidiary
(that has become an associate or a joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method) to fair value are
recognised in the former parent’s profit or loss only to the
extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in the new associate
or joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for certain properties and
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for
share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of
HKAS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to fair
value but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 or value in use in HKAS 36.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

R EELEAC Y

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

For financial instruments and investment properties which are
transferred at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so
that the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction
price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the
changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries, including
re-attribution of relevant reserves between the Group and the
non-controlling interests according to the Group’s and the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate interests. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are
adjusted, and the fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if any)
are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of
any retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary attributable
to the owners of the Company. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that
subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e.
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair
value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment
in an associate or a joint venture.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders
of the investee;

rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

<

S

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of profit or loss to the extent of dividends received
and receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries that
are not classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5
Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &£ — Z

3.

R EELEAC Y

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in associates

An associate is the entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements of
associates used for equity accounting purposes are prepared
using uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances. Under the
equity method, an investment in associates is initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associates.
Changes in net assets of the associates other than profit or loss
and other comprehensive income are not accounted for unless
such changes resulted in ownership interest held by the Group.
When the Group’s share of losses of associates exceeds the
Group’s interest in associates (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in associates), the Group discontinues recognising
its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associates.

An investment in associates is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate. On acquisition of the investment in associates, any
excess of the cost of the investment over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is
recognised immediately in profit or loss in the period in which
the investment is acquired.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

3.

—tEF+ A=+ —BIUEFECOETIIR)

FESTHEX @

BREQAFZRE

A NETE S lﬂﬁ*ﬁikwaﬁ i 3k
MEBARRA LN — Eﬁ%oéﬁa’g
WA EREHRARELH B REER
TR AEEEEN2E BTRESE
T ©

BMENRZERE BERBBEDUERS

AR AR AV B MK - RiIEE S - B
ERARANESE BN ZHBERRY

HELUXGEBEARAMERESR - S
AHBUR - RBE RB 2R E TV IR A &

ﬁ KA T BRAKRFINER LA E
ﬁ%“M“TZEm&WM”TZ
Emiﬁwm¢¢ﬁﬂ¥ cHENRFE
ENZEBHHRBEaMEMEE KA HT
SN BRIFCEEHERAEEMTA
MESEMEE - EAKEDEHE QA
ZEEBHEERBEA ARz (HE
BRI RS MaxEPESELD L8
RARBERBE QR ZREFE 2 — &
) MAKEETHEERIAE G 2E
— BB -BIDEZERUAAKREERE
EEXRESREEEFRRKRZBZERFE
A R E R IR R o

RERETRRBENAER  GHEQ
AZRERBEDEAR RUWEBEQ
AZRER RERABBAKEDHZ
WRELAHNEERABEAAFEL
TEHFLHERSEE LT AREZK
HE AKEMEAENEERBERE
HMABRZIAAFEERERA ZEMR
ZH SR BRBREYENE N EmE

=7
s ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in associates (Continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s investment in associates. When necessary, the
entire carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single
asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to
the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
associates, it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in the investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the former
associates and the retained interest is a financial asset within
the scope of HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference between the
carrying amount of the associates, and the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing the relevant
interest in the associates is included in the determination of the
gain or loss on disposal of the associates. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to the associates on the
same basis as would be required if the associates had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by the associates would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification
adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant
associates.

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in associates becomes an investment in a joint
venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes an
investment in associates. There is no remeasurement to fair
value upon such changes in ownership interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

R EELEAC Y

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Interest in associates (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in associates
but the Group continues to use the equity method, the Group
reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of the gain or loss
that had previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income relating to that reduction in ownership interest if that
gain or loss would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with associates of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
associates are recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associates that
are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described below.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised when services are
provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal
outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which
is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that
asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised
as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
Group’s net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset. Other than investment properties measured under fair
value model, such costs are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease
obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
general policy on borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring land
held under operating leases, are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payment for property interest which
includes both leasehold land and building elements, the Group
assesses the classification of each element separately based on
the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been
transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both elements
are operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating leases. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests
in the land element and building element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as
an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in
the consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the leasehold land and building elements, the
entire property is generally classified as if the leasehold land is
under finance lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the
rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
At the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which
case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interest as appropriate).

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Manadatory Provident Fund Scheme are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the
equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into consideration
all non-market vesting conditions is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate of
equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve). At the end of each
reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the number
of equity instruments expected to vest based on assessment of
all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The impact of the
revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised
estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at the date of
grant, the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to equity.
When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or
are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will continue to be held in
share options reserve/will be transferred to retained profits/
other reserve.

Share options granted to parties other than employees
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties
other than employees are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot
be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the
fair value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the
date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders
the service. The fair values of the goods or services received
are recognised as expenses (unless the goods of services
qualify for recognition as assets).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred
tax assets for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model, the carrying amounts of such properties
are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property over
time, rather than through sale.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including hotel property held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost or revalued amount, less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Hotel property is interests in buildings and their integral fixed
plant which are collectively used in the operations of the hotel,
and are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and
impairment losses, if any, the related repairs and maintenance
attributable to hotel properties are charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income in
the period which they are incurred. The costs of significant
improvements are capitalised.

Depreciation of the hotel property is calculated on the straight-
line basis to write off the cost of the hotel property over the
remaining lease terms.

Depreciation of other property, plant and equipment is
recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their
residual values over their useful lives and after taking into
account of their estimated residual value, using the reducing
balance method at a principal annual rate of 20%. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
pbasis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.
However, when there is no reasonable certainty that ownership
will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful
lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property,
plant and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is
recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

R EELEAC Y

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or
for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. All of the Group’s property interests held under
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are classified and accounted for as investment
properties and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment
properties are included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and
no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the property
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss
in the period in which the property is derecognised.

Impairment of tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss (if any).

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of
an asset individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of tangible assets (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below
the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in-first-out
basis. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &£ — Z

3.

R EELEAC Y

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those
cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is
material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a
provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) and loans and receivables. The classification depends
on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition. All regular way
purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for
debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as
at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or
losses.

Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
asset is (i) held for trading or (i) it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling it
in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking;
or
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

o the financial asset forms part of a group of financial assets
or financial liabilities or both, which is managed and its
performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis; or

o it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains
or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the ‘other gain and losses’ line item. Fair value is determined
in the manner described in note 28.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables and cash and bank
balances) are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

FEETHXRm

R T A

ERMEE @

BARERERIENLEHEE (&)

o HAFETRAEUHMIAEMTE
T Ho

TREERFEESREERIN AR
THBERTRNSERBREERRAA
ERBEIIR:

° BRETHBRIKXNBRIAELEHR
MEFrEXER D EN A -8 5%

s ZETBMEEBAREBEAKESEHN
ERERRRERBEERNARA
EEEFHREAN—HEREEN
TRHAEEXAEHEENRERAGA
EW—Ho MAEAESENER
TR ZEEFABLER K

s HEBXREBE BEHZHERASITET
ENGHN—®Mo MEBGFE
AIEIRHBEAC SN (EEXR
B)EER/BAABER BRI -

N

BonrERBRRIENEREENEA
REHK  MEHTEELOEARER
REEER NERRANBEFRERE
REREEMMBNEARELFNE I
SIANTEMmKm R EEIET - ARENR
MiE28 it ey 77 A EE -

BEMRERMNE

B R Ko 8 MR TR 7 Y s B E Bk R) B E A
RZETEEREE - ERKEWFIRTD
BERMNBAFEZHFEXNAREIMAE
BRREBRIE (BREESH MEME
Wi - BEHERWERR LIRS MIRTT
BE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables (Continued)

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

Obijective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in
the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

3.

FEETHXRmw

€@ T A um

ERLEE @)

EXREKIE(E)

Fl oW A BB A BB F R FESR - 40T HA
EWRBFIERRSETIALSERE
3 o

EREENRE
CREE(ERZTPULRTBEREZS
REERINEREFERRLEEANTE
ERERETR REFTBRBRBRTIRE
ZHEBRAKBAEREAN NI ERZ T
MEERBEZ - BAXZESHMIE
TEE BHEREEZB/EHRIE-

HRMESREE REZEBEETE
EEE

s BEUTAXEBFHIHBREATHAE
Bk

e ERAKH WMAREBNITEEE
MEBHARE 5

e [ERABUREEBEENDBE
43

s RAUEBEMBAHEHZERMEER
EEBRmE -

EURERASREZTBER AIREAR
5 B 18 1 WK RS 8% I3 R SRR AR BUIR
- 2B R ED bR AR IO 3R B RE IR
RAMERABREENRABRENL-

ABER AR EREEMS @ RE
CRABEEREEREGF RAKASRE
CREZeREECRERMNETE)
ZEZER e

MAEZRARAR —Z—LtHFFH

109



110

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

R EELEAC Y

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be
reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the investment
at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what
the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received (net of direct issue costs).

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees on points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis
other than financial liabilities classified as at FVTPL, of which the
interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred
asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset
and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that
had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on
hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-
term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and bank overdrafts (if any).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person:

(@ has controls or joint control over the Group;
(b)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(c) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(i)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(@  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(b) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(c) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(d) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third party;

(e) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

()  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i);

(@ a person identified in (i)(@) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(h)  the entity or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the parent of the Group.

Close member of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to inference, or be inference
by, that person in their dealing with the entity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &£ — Z

4,

R EELEAC Y

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors have made
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements.

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the
valuation performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on a method
of valuation which involves certain estimates. In relying on the
valuation report, the directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of valuation is
reflective of the current market conditions and underlying
assumptions adopted for capitalisation of the income derived
from the existing tenancies with due provision for the
reversionary income potential of the property interests.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 4.

AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTA'NTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year (as below).

Estimated impairment of assets

The Group assesses annually whether assets have any
indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. Where an indication of impairment is noted,
the recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment will
be estimated based on value-in-use calculations or scrap value.
These calculations and valuations require the use of judgement
and estimates on future operating cash flows and discount
rates adopted and estimated market value of the scraps.

REVENUE

RS B R A (D
—£E+= A=+ —ALFEABTIIR)

EESTHE RMEST AP
EEZNEERE@

EATHBPRRZEEZRIR

ﬁ?ﬂH&ZIE{EZ“&B’\#&iHﬂ*#
Bt THPAEEZHMEERE  EFA
AR TN -—EAVREFECEELEABER
HEELREAEIAEZERRAR@IAT) -

EEMNRBEME

AEESFRRABENHRIGEE
EREEMRETR - WHHBERETR
W BERRBOAKRE SRS HBFTE
SHESRBE F AR T - B Lat
BREEARBERKEERSREM
FREMHE NG LEFAHHEEN
M

Gross rental income from letting of
investment properties
Revenue from hotel operations

B 5 75 W s

HERENEES WA RE

a2
e 2=

2017 2016

—B—tF —E-RF

6,079,993 2,999,966

29,748,773 25,827,515

35,828,766 28,827,481
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KEmERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) #iZ = —+tF+ = A=+ — A 1L FE UAETTIIR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING 6. DEMER
Information reported to the Board of Directors of the Company, MERBSE LD I RIBFTMEANAD T
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM”), for the EERAEEEERREB)MEHR2E
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment B AlER AR 2 RE Z B A -

performance focuses on types of services provided.

The Group’s operating and reportable segments under HKFRS NEBIREBER SN B RELDESIHRT
8 are as follows: R R A Ry EBa R
Property investment — the rental of investment properties MERE — HBEKREME
Hotel operations — the operation of hotel BIEER — BEEE
Segment revenue and results D Eb U R EAE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results NEFHIZBEROLEA D 2B REE
by reportable and operating segments: DITEAR :

Property investment Hotel operations Total

YERE il Pt

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
TE-LF SNl — T -+ F mESaNGl — T — + F I aNGE
REPORTABLE SEGMENT REVENUE Ul 2

Revenue from external customers REIIBREF K= (HYCRRE 2,000,066 WPRNLZENGEN 25,827,515 EREK:PENGIM 28,827,481

REPORTABLE SEGMENT RESULT ¥4&
Segment result before other gains and & 51 £ it g 25 % &5 18

losses: Mo B EEAE 5,997,957 2,842,461 3,275,313 QEQNeloNe2N 9,273,270 1,762,433
Net increase in fair value of KEMENR R EE
investment properties eS| CRONOOE 9,390,500 - — BELOLE 9,390,500

Segment result DEBELE ROV raLya 12,232,961 ERPYCRIRE  (1,080,028) IMEXTERPYON 11,152,933
Unallocated income/(expense) KEDWA(Z ) 1,448,332 (375,449)
Corporate administration costs 1 FEAT B A ((ALRTGPIY  (8,909,352)
Share of profit/(loss) of associates EiEBERRZA

F,/(E1#E) 1,786,851 (354,057)
Profit before tax R %52 Al 22 7 9,325,441 1,514,075
Income tax (expense)/credit FTig &t (2 i) K & (1,089,340) 41,207
Profit for the year RNEERF - 8,236,101 1,555,282
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &

SEG MENT REPO RTI NG (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

Segment revenue reported above represents revenue generated
from external customers. There were no inter-segment sales in
the current year (2016: Nil).

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note 3.
Segment profit represents the profit earned by each segment
without allocation of bank interest income and other unallocated
income/(expense), corporate administration costs including
director’s remuneration, share of profit/(loss) of associates and
income tax (expense)/credit. This is the measure reported to the
CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
by reportable and operating segments:

Property investment

MERE

ASSETS &E

Segment assets DEBEE
Interest in associates ATl =N ol
Unallocated corporate assets RS RAEE

Consolidated total assets

LIABILITIES =i
paN ﬁB ﬁ 13»:
KEHRAARE

Segment liabilities (1,345,047)

Unallocated corporate liabilities

Consolidated total liabilities REREE

All assets are allocated to operating segments other than
interest in associates, deferred tax assets, finance lease
receivable and certain cash and bank balances.

All liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than
certain balances of current liabilities and deferred tax liabilities.

RS B R A (D
—£E+= A=+ —ALFEABTIIR)

7 &8 & B
DEWMEREE @)

EXFBz o BB SaERBINGER 2
e e RFRLESBEHFHER(ZFT—
NEE) o

ARBRNEEN BB RRERKE
SETBRAEREHNHE3 - 2 B R E
BRI B A - KXW | BCIRTT AR
WAREAMRED WA (TH) - BEAT
BAABREZTME  BIEMERE QR
2B (BB MR (L) e -
WFEFTZEEZ2BTARANEZRERE
BOERFEREZA -

THEERARE

AREBERABREEENIE D2 EE
RBEITOT :
Hotel operations Total
i waE

2017 2016 2016
—NE —ET—RF

PRINCY I 262,826,708 [EKRERIEE 74,573,619 ERIENGIYLN337,400,327

EENCRIRCIN 15,361,501
LRGNl 92,308,520

CA SRl Y 445,070,348

(RPN (8,214,533) EMECRIGETCE (9,375,953)

CREPRZAN (6,419,358)

- (PR (15,795,311)

BRFLL  REERRZ#n

CREEHIRE
ERRERBITESRBEHERKER
v FRBEEEBENREEZEN -

RREARDABERNRELEHRERR
ShoFFBREAENEER HHRD -

MAEZRARAR —Z—LtHFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KEmERME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) #iZ = —+tF+ = A=+ — A 1L FE UAETTIIR)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. TEER @
Other segment information H {th 2 3 & &
Property investment Hotel operations Total
MERE s B

2017 2016 2017 2016
TE-LF NGl — T -+ F el — F — —E-RF

Other segment information Hith 5 &
Additions to non-current assets ERBEERE IR 163,915,741 109,037 3,859,418 QGRS 167,775,159
Depreciation of property, ME - BEREEZ

plant and equipment e 4,854,007 RN 4,947,450 EHIRIE
Amortisation of prepaid TE A ERIBEH

lease payment 1,874,007 1,874,007 1,874,007 1,874,007
Net increase in fair BEMENRARBE

value of investment properties SF 10 (CRNL[OR (9,390,500) (CROIOR  (9,390,500)
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEKX

plant and equipment B2 BEER 7,893 2,897 7,893 4,735
Recovery of impairment losses 15 [B] H th & Us BR 3R 2

recognised on other receivables (B &5 18 2R 1,855,223 1,855,223 —
Impairment loss recognised on H i FE W BR R 2 BB

other receivables EEER 2,053
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)
6. SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 6. 7EHER @
Geographical information i EE R
The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the AEB 2 EBEER M EEZ MR & 15
People’s Republic of China (excluding Hong Kong) (the “PRC”) —hE(FEHEBRIN([RE]D)EES -

and Hong Kong.

Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers REEBEMNE  ANEBKRKBINPRE 2 WS
is presented based on the location of the operations. REMBRGBEMEBE D ZIEFRHDEESER
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is presented BEEBWT :

based on the geographical location of assets are detailed

below:

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets
T NBEE I EkRBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
—z—+5 B -z 5 R
PRC A 29,748,773 25,827,515 WEERVARPLLE 112,189,159
Hong Kong a5 6,079,993 2,999,000 BPREELLRIEE 220,623,648

35,828,766 28,827,481 WElrAZHCE 332,812,807

Information about major customers EBEFERFNEHR
No external customers of the Group contributed over 10% of REBR-_E—LtER-_E—NEFEEL
the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2017 BWEINLRPHAEFII IR H5BE
and 2016. 10% 7 &= B Y25 -
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HtgA
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
Bank interest income RATF B HA 246,835 797,675
Consultancy income B8 B U A 137,850 4,745
Finance lease interest income BEMREEF B U A 710,278 24,237
Recovery of other receivable previously U [E] E 4th & IR BR FX 2 R E S 1B
written off R 1,609,994 —
Others H 139,282 295,575
2,844,239 1,122,232
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HtWzmKkEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Net increase in fair value of REWENDREEBEF
investment properties by 4,800,000 9,390,500
Gain arising on change in fair value of financial E4 B4 § & E (B EMEFR)
assets designated as at fair value through ZARENREZWIEFEEL
profit or loss BAEBERARBALE) 760,846 473,198
Impairment loss recognised Hib e R R 2 R EE1E
on other receivables R (2,053)
Loss on disposal of property, LEME  BER&EZEE
plant and equipment (7,893) (4,735)
Loss on deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE KB R F
)k (402,324) —
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) SFINE U (B R) 848,284 (880,426)
5,998,913 8,976,484
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9. FiIBH W (ER)
2017 2016
—E—tF /N
Current tax: BV AR FE I8 -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax MR TSR 1,486,222 7,299
Deferred tax (note 24): HEIEFLIH (MT7E24) ¢
Current year KEEF (396,882) (48,506)
Total income tax expense/(credit) recognised ~ ANEFFER S H (K E)
in profit or loss 1,089,340 (41,207)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made in the
consolidated financial statements as the Company and its Hong
Kong subsidiaries did not have any assessable profits for the
year (2016: Nil).

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for
both years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &%= == —

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (continued)

The tax expense/(credit) for the year can be reconciled to profit
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

58 Atk

2017
Hong Kong
Profit before tax % %4 B 2 F 3,703,775
Tax at applicable tax rates 3% i A f Kzt &
B 611,123
Tax effect of expenses not AT IEE 2
deductible for Hgg 2
tax purpose 458,029
Tax effect of income not  E/ERFIEE 2
taxable for tax purpose i 7% 52 £ (1,366,042)
Tax effect of temporary RERZBEFRAEZE
difference not recognised £ 7 1% 57 £ (34,383)

Utilisation of tax losses ) L AT R FERR B IE
previously not recognised &5 18

Tax effect of tax loss RIERRIEEE 2
not recognised s & 331,273
Income tax expense FARABBEXH

for the year

RE R R M (F)
tE+=A=+—RILFEABETHR)

9. FiIEHXH (ER) w

RAFENBRES L (FER)HBREEBE
B H Ath 2 Uk 2 5K P S A B B AT & R
BRuN R ¢

—E-t%

% PRC %
TE B

5,621,666

Total %
#WE Bk

9,325,441

16.50 1,405,416 25.00 2,016,539 21.62

1,765,396 2,223,425

(1,632,111)

(2,998,153)
(34,383)
(449,361) (449,361)

331,273

1,089,340 1,089,340
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

“E—+tFFTZA=+—HIEFEUUETITR)

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9. FIEHXE (ER)w
(Continued)
2016 —E—RF
Hong Kong % PRC % Total %
BB B B BHkt wEw BEHt
Profit before tax B 75 AT &2 A 1,323,554 190,521 1,514,075
Tax at applicable tax rates ¥z A X+ &
i 3K 218,386  16.50 47,630 25.00 266,016  17.57
Tax effect of expenses not A MFIEE 2
deductible for R &
tax purpose 806,015 1,927,828 2,733,843
Tax effect of income not /AR FIIEH 2
taxable for tax purpose T 5 & (1,711,488) (1,5638,258) (3,249,746)
Tax effect of temporary ~ KEREH =8 2
difference not recognised % 18 57 £ (@22,741) = (22,741)
Utilisation of tax losses &) A Jo Bl R TR
previously not recognised  F 1& fE5 18 — (478,407) (478,407)
Tax effect of tax loss RERHIEEIEZ
not recognised s e & 709,828 — 709,828
Income tax credit FRFEIE R
for the year = (41,207) (41,207)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &= — T —+tF+ - A=+ — B It FE LB TIR)

10. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 10. XREEEF
2016
—E—RF
Profit for the year has been arrived at after ZAEERF S (5t A) & :
(crediting)/charging:
Gross rental income from investment properties % & 1) % 10 & Ik A 42 58 (6,079,993) (2,999,966)
Less: Direct operating expenses incurred for W AFEREREYE W Z
investment properties that generated rental HEWAMELEBE#E
income during the year P = 2] 55,733 354,870
(6,024,260) (2,645,096)
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ E TEF ¥ H (BEEE=MS) :
remunerations):
Salaries and other benefits in kind e ME M E Y& T 12,325,986 11,269,308
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes RORET B3R 692,494 755,301
13,018,480 12,024,609
Depreciation of hotel property BEMEZITE 2,449,064 2,449,064
Depreciation of other property, plant and HEiwZE BMELERKREBZITE
equipment 2,498,386 3,052,779
4,947,450 5,501,843
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment T8 1< 78 & 58 2 5 1,874,007 1,874,007
Total depreciation and amortisation 4B T B TN 5 6,821,457 7,375,850
Auditors’ remuneration = ELAD B 650,000 600,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) #iZ = —+tF+ = A=+ — A 1L FE UAETTIIR)

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and CO, is as
follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2017

Salaries and
other benefits
in kind
FeRHEAM
BYz2EAN

Name of Directors

EERE
(A) Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Xiaowu (note (i) SENES (B EE )
Mr. Liu Hongjian (note (i) B4 52 (P 5 (i)
Ms. Chen Danyun R E

(Chief Executive) (T B A8 %)
Mr. Chen Yang BR%
Sub-total INEE

The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly
for their services with the management of the affairs of the

11.

2,015,000

EEREBRITHAEHMN

AEEEIBTRABRES RELDH
BB AR EFIRENT

BE_FT-—+t¥+-A=+—H

Contributions
to retirement
benefit scheme

Total
emoluments

BT BIHER et H M

780,000 780,000

650,000
585,000

650,000
585,000

2,015,000

UERTEETFHEIEERMLMHE QR
NEBEHZEBITHRY

Contributions
to retirement
benefit scheme

Total
emoluments

RS BIHERK et

Company and the Group.
Salaries and
other benefits
Name of Directors Fees in kind
FekHAM
EEHE BEYMzEA
(B) Non-Executive Directors ~ JE# {7 &=
Mr. Feng Qiang 5 58
Mr. Zhang Fan SR MR
Mr. Wang Ruilian F I
Sub-total NEt

The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
mainly for their services as directors of the Company or its
subsidiaries.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) HZ=Z —+tF+ = A =+— B It FE CAB T R)

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1. EER T ETHAEHFM @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 BEZE=-Z2—+tH5+=-H=+—H

Salaries and  Contributions

other benefits to retirement Total
Name of Directors in kind benefit scheme emoluments
FeRHEM
EENSR : BEYzERN BAGEMHER
(C) Independent Non- BYFHITES
executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu MEJK 100,000 100,000
Mr. Leung Hok Lim 72 B 100,000 100,000
Mr. Ng Man Kung R HE 100,000 100,000
Sub-total /Nt 300,000 300,000
The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown N EBYIERATEETFHFMNETEEAERA
above were mainly for their services as director of the Company. BESER 2R -
Total Bt 300,000 2,015,000 - 2,315,000
Notes: B
(0] Mr. Wang Xiaowu is resigned on 23 January 2018. [0} FIREER-_ZE—NE—B-_+=HE(F-
(ii) Mr. Liu Hongjian is appointed on 23 January 2018. (i) AR E—NE—A=+=HL{F-
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B2 Z—XRF+-_A=+—H
Salaries and Contributions to
other benefits retirement Total
Name of directors Fees in kind  benefit scheme  emoluments
e RAEAM RRETE
EEHA we EWzE K 485t % o
(A) Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Wang Xiaowu T NE — 780,000 — 780,000
Ms Chen Danyun (note (i) BR 7 5= (BT 5 (7)) = 650,000 = 650,000
Mr. Chen Yang PR 15 — 585,000 — 385,000
Sub-total NG — 2,015,000 — 2,015,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

11. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 1. EERFIETBRAEHF M@

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly NERITTESTNEEIEEAMME QT
for their services with the management of the affairs of the REBEEL 2B EITEARE

Company and the Group.

Salaries and  Contributions to

other benefits retirement Total
Name of directors Fees inkind  benefit scheme  emoluments
e REAM RIRETE
EEHA we EBEYZEA R FEE
(B) Non-executive Directors FE#HTESE
Mr. Feng Qiang 5 58 — — - -
Mr. Zhang Fan ok R — — — —
Mr. Wang Ruilian F I kR
Sub-total INET = — — _
The Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were NEEHRITEESETMEIZEAEERART =
mainly for their services as directors of the Company or its EERZIRR -
subsidiaries.
Salaries and
other Contributions to
benefits retirement Total
Name of directors Fees inkind  benefit scheme  emoluments
e REAM RRGE 2
EEMA we EBEYMzEH R #& 51 % B
(C) Independent Non- BYKEHITES
executive Directors
Mr. Lam Kwong Siu HEIK 100,000 — — 100,000
Mr. Leung Hok Lim 2 B2 100,000 — — 100,000
Mr. Ng Man Kung Rt 100,000 = = 100,000
Sub-total /INEE 300,000 = = 300,000
The Independent Non-executive Directors’ emoluments shown N EBIIERTEESSFMEIEEAAD
above were mainly for their services as director of the Company. BEEEL Z R ©
Total 185t 300,000 2,015,000 — 2,315,000

126 Fujian Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2017



11.

12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 11. EERFTETHAEHFM @
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Notes: B
[0) Ms. Chen Danyun (appointed on 7 August 2015) and Mr. Wang Ruilian (resigned [0) BAELZt(R-_ZE—HFENALBLEE)RE
on 19 October 2015) are also the Chief Executive of the Company and WmEREE(RM—_E—A"F+AT+HLBERE) AR
her/his emoluments disclosed above include those for services rendered NATHREE MEEAFEME REERITHR
by her/him as the Chief Executive. BB Z R
(ii) Mr. Chen Yang is appointed on 19 October 2015. (ii) BiBEER-—ZE—RAF+A+HLBE LE-
(iii) Mr. Liu Xiaoting is resigned on 7 August 2015. (i) BlISTEER-_ZE—HAFENALBEA(E-
vy Mr. Ye Tao is resigned on 20 May 2015. vy EBEEN-_ZT-—HAFERA-_TBBEE-
(v) Mr. Zhang Fan is appointed on 20 May 2015. v) RNAEAEE-—"FT—AFAA=-THLEME-
(vi) Mr. Wang Ruilian is appointed on 19 October 2015. (vi) THEREER-_ZE—RAF+ATILBELEE-
There was no arrangement under which the Director or the KRR EEHETBITHRAEREBELHESR
Chief Executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration GekEERBEMEE -
during the year.
During the year ended 31 December 2017, none of the Director BE - Z—tH&E+_-_A=+—HIEFE
has granted share options, in respect of their services to the HAf  AREEBEREERES S ABRR
Group under the share option scheme of the Company (2016: BYNFRESHANEERB Z2ME (=
Nil). Details of the share option scheme are set out in note 30 to T—RNF:E) BREAEZFHFMAD S
the Group’s consolidated financial statements. RérE F B RERMTFES0 o
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEME
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the EhE&m#HiEER =R(ZF— R
Group, three (2016: three) were Directors and the Chief FZR)RESRITHRER  BE 2
Executive of the Company whose emoluments are included in TEFAMFHIZCESTME AN HBEM
the disclosure in note 11 above. The emoluments of the Z(ZE—RE MB)ATZEHMET :
remaining two (2016: two) individuals were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—R
Salaries and other benefits in kind HehEMEYZEF 768,663 740,194
Contributions to retirement benefit schemes & /R 51 21 £ X 30,360 29,400
799,023 769,594

Their emoluments were all within HK$1,000,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the five highest paid individuals,
including the Directors of the Company, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2016: Nil).

B & & £ 7 1,000,000 7T 2 A ©

BE_ZT—+tF+-A=+—RHILFE
HiF YEEFRAL BREZFENM
EERRSIMARMAREERZ B
FERBERMHEE (T —RF: |) o

MAEZRARAR —Z—LtHFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. R &R
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for ARNAEGFRAEABHE-_ZT—tE=_F
the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 are based on —~"F+=-—A=+—8H JJ:ZP%TEZ 5K
the Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company as HEARBEERF BIETY AT 2 &t
the following data: i
2016
—E-REF
Profit EZF|
Profit for the year attributable to owners of ZRHEIR AR RQ B #E =S A A E(L
the Company for the purposes of basic BRABUESREARANE S
and diluted earnings per share B A 7,947,117 1,665,501
Number of shares I 5 & B
Weighted average number of ordinary RBUAGTFEGRER REERT
shares for the purposes of basic and 2 RN RE S 1 RR 2
diluted earnings per share 1,145,546,000 932,075,448
No diluted earnings per share for both 2017 and 2016 were —F— t E T —RNFWEEBER
presented as there were no potential ordinary share in issue for BTz l 1t|; —E—LER-F
both 2017 and 2016. —/—ilﬁﬁﬁé% A e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. 9% BERKE

Plant,
machinery
Hotel Furniture Leasehold and
property and fixtures improvements equipment Total
E3095% B - HEEs
TEIEY ¥ R®E MEEE ] ECR-C)
COST 1 R 2
At 1 January 2016 R=ZZE—X"E—HA—H 92,391,462 3,411,918 15,343,397 6,373,735 117,520,512
Additions NE - - 4,014,122 101,537 4,115,659
Disposals ek — (3,835) (216,086) (40,053) (259,974)
Exchange adjustments VE 5, 58 B — (213,889) (959,377) (397,182)  (1,570,448)
At 31 December 2016 and R-ZE—RE
1 January 2017 +-—A=+—H8BX
—Z—tF¥—A—H 92,391,462 3,194,194 18,182,056 6,038,037 119,805,749
Additions NE — 5,682 - 163,213 168,895
Disposals H e — — - (129,701) (129,701)
Exchange adjustments [ 5 3 2 — 221,165 1,259,182 414,016 1,894,363
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+&F
+=-—A=+—8 92,391,462 3,421,041 19,441,238 6,485,565 121,739,306
ACCUMULATED 2 MERRE
DEPRECIATION AND
IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2016 R=ZZE—X"E—HA—H 68,104,915 2,111,272 7,925,068 3,386,228 81,527,483
Provided for the year REFHE 2,449,064 252,325 2,210,279 590,175 5,501,843
Eliminated on disposals & B 8 M s — (3,835) (216,086) (35,318) (255,239)
Exchange adjustments FE 3, 58 & = (140,237) (657,117) (224,017) (921,371)
At 31 December 2016 and R-TE—RHF
1 January 2017 +-—A=+—8K
—EZ—t+F¥—H—H 70,553,979 2,219,525 9,362,144 3,717,068 85,852,716
Provided for the year NEEZFE 2,449,064 216,065 1,792,790 489,531 4,947,450
Eliminated on disposals H B 8 e il gH = = = (94,714) (94,714)
Exchange adjustments VE 5, 58 B — 161,538 715,933 268,146 1,145,617
At 31 December 2017 MNZE—+4F
+=—A=+—8 73,003,043 2,597,128 11,870,867 4,380,031 91,851,069
CARRYING AMOUNTS IR E
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZB—tF
F=E == [E 19,388,419 823,913 7,570,371 2,105,534 29,888,237
At 31 December 2016 MN-ZTE—REF
+=H=+—8H 21,837,483 974,669 8,819,912 2,320,969 33,953,033

RBERARAE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &£ — Z

R EELEAC Y

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a
review of the recoverable amount of assets including property
and leasehold land used in the Group’s hotel operation
segment. In performing impairment testing, the directors of the
Company reviewed the carrying amounts of these assets by
reference to a valuation performed by Norton Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited is a
member of Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. The recoverable
amount of this cash-generating unit (“CGU”) is determined
pbased on a value-in-use calculation which uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a 5-year period and a discount rate of
7.74% (2016: 7.9%) per annum. The key assumptions for the
value-in-use calculation are those regarding the discount rate,
growth in revenue, direct and other operating costs during the
period. The management estimates discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the CGU.

There was no impairment for the years ended 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2016.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &%= —

15. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

15. B HERKE

—tF+T A=+ —BUEFECUERIIR)

COST 1R 2
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016, RZE—R"F—HA—H ZZE—KF
1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 +—A=+—B8B -—E—+tF—A—A8K
—E—+H&+=-_A=+—H 86,000,000
AMORTISATION AND IMPAIRMENT BRI E
At 1 January 2016 N_ZT—F—H—H 67,416,105
Amortisation for the year NEE 2 # 5 1,874,007
At 31 December 2016 and at 1 January 2017 RZE—R"F+_A=+—H
B-T—t&E—A—H 69,290,112
Amortisation for the year KEFZ 7 5 1,874,007
At 31 December 2017 A —_E—+tF+_A=+—H 71,164,119
CARRYING AMOUNTS BREE
At 31 December 2017 R=-ZE—+tF+=-A=+—H 14,835,881
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—REFE+=-—_A=+—8H 16,709,888

Notes:

(i

Pursuant to the terms of the joint venture agreement signed between the
Xiamen Railway Department Company Limited (“Railway Department”) and
Yan Hei Limited (“Yan Hei”), both parties have agreed to establish a Sino-
foreign co-operative joint venture enterprise known as Xiamen South East
Asia Hotel Company, Limited (“Xiamen Plaza”), an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company to operate and manage the Xiamen South East
Asia Hotel (“Hotel”). The land use rights of the Hotel have been granted to
the joint venture partner and Xiamen Plaza is vested with the land use
rights of the Hotel throughout the operation period of Xiamen Plaza.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group carried out a review of the
recoverable amount of its leasehold land. The leasehold land is used in the
Group’s hotel segment. In performing impairment testing, the directors of
the Company reviewed the carrying amount of the leasehold land by
reference to a valuation performed by Norton Appraisals Limited, an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with the Group.
Norton Appraisals Limited is a member of Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors. The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on a
value in use calculation which uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a 5-year period and
a discount rate of 7.74% (2016: 7.9%) per annum. The key assumptions
for the value in use calculation are those regarding the discount rate,
growth in revenue, direct and other operating costs during the period. The
management estimates discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU.

There was no impairment for the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

B &E -

()

(i

*EHF Pl QB ([HEK R 1) BA R B
Tfﬁﬁlﬁ T(H’%ﬁj)sxmflﬁ/\ﬁbﬁ
E%Zﬂ%?ﬁ S RBKEERRZEG EEE
F‘ﬂ%@ﬁﬁﬁ@%ﬁl‘ﬁ@ﬁjﬁﬁﬁj) NG
MEEZENBAR AEZLEREEEMRAE
BRBEE(DEE]D - BELEAEERTE
ARH MAELEHREBEZ Lk PBER
RBAA °

REHRER - NEEHBEEEZEB 2 BN
TG RIEETAINE BE 2 EH - BHET
BERARE  RAREETNEMAN L MBS
REZEAERE2ZEZERTEER D
AlZhE TREERTEERATDRBLER
AEMMEEAEMEeg B REXEER
BRE-ZKEEEZReEEEMRRE
KEBEBAMMHAEZAFAMBREESERZ
BERBERSF774% (=T —/NF : 7.9%)
TREZAABEAE ARBENEERR
REBAFRE  WAER BEEREMEERK
Ko BRBEMF 2R EDE REBETSTE
ZeENKREERREELAEUZEER

B -
BE-T—t&+-A=+—BR-ZT—A
g S (s S R e A

MEBZRARLE —Z—tE5H
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

16. RE Y #

FAIR VALUE DARE

Balance at beginning of year F R

Addition & n

Net increase in fair value recognised in KI8T R
profit or loss RNABERF

FIRERR

Balance at end of year

Unrealised gain on properties revaluation BIENEZ 2 KSEMWESH
s (BEREMKEREE)

included in profit or loss (included in
other gains and losses)

2017 2016
—Z—tF AN
218,500,000 45,450,000
- 163,659,500
4,800,000 9,390,500
223,300,000 218,500,000
4,800,000 9,390,500

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purpose are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for
as investment properties.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties at 31
December 2017 and 2016 have been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out at that date by Norton Appraisals
Limited, independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Norton Appraisals Limited is a
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Surveyors.

The fair value of the commercial property units were determined
based on the income approach, where the current passing
rents and market rentals of all lettable units of the properties are
assessed and discounted at the market yield expected by
investors for this type of properties. The current passing rents
are assessed by reference to the current tenancy agreements.
The market rentals are assessed by reference to the rentals
achieved in the lettable units of the properties as well as other
lettings of similar properties in the neighbourhood. The discount
rate is determined by reference to the yields derived from
analysing the sales transactions of similar commercial properties
in Hong Kong and adjusted to take into account the market
expectation from property investors to reflect factors specific to
the Group’s investment properties. There has been no change
from the valuation technique used in the prior years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) HZ=Z —+tF+ = A =+— B It FE CAB T R)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest and
best use of the properties are their current use.

One of the key inputs used in valuing the investment properties
was the discount rates used, which ranged from 2.5% to 4.0%
(2016: 2% to 5% per annum). An increase in the discount rate
used would result in a decrease in fair value measurement of
the investment properties, and vice versa.

Another key inputs used in valuing the investment properties
was the reversionary income potential of the tenancies. The
higher the reversionary income potential of the tenancies, the
higher the fair value of the investment properties, and vice
versa.

The fair value of the parking space were determined based on
direct comparison method, which were making reference to
market observable transactions of similar properties and adjust
to reflect the conditions and locations of the subject property.
There has been no change from the valuation technique used in
the prior years.

Details of the Group’s investment properties and information
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2017 are as
follows:

Commercial property units located 7 FA % 7 #Y 79 3£ 14
in Hong Kong %
Parking space located in Hong Kong i i3 & 7 #9 {2 & fi

16. REY X @)

REFAMEZAAER  FRANEZER
REERENSEERNME -

Er—HFELABELATHEREME
ThBRER E - P B3R KN F2.5%F4.0%
—E—RF:BF2%E5%) c IR K £
AHESSBHEENEZLARABZTIR R
ZINER o

Hp S —BHEITEHBEEERFGERED
EDHEONERKRARE SN ERERKA
ENLEAKESBERENEZAAREL
o RZIA -

—

FEMNNAAEBEERSRBEERIELBEE
o EE2EMS LREABRENMER
5 N AF 58 B DA IR BR 5% D 3 9 1 14 AN AL
B o bt fhE 75 )% B DA {E B [ 48 b 3P 2

B o

R

R-ZE—tF+-_A=1t—H AEERK
EVMEZHABRAARBEEBRZERS
JIEAT

Fair value as at
31 December
2017
R=F—+tF
+=—HA=+—H

B=M ZANRfER
222,500,000

222,500,000

800,000 - 800,000
800,000 222,500,000

223,300,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. IR E Y % @)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and information RZE—RNE+_A=+—HBAXAEHIKX
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2016 are as EMEZHBRALBERER ZER T
follows: wm

Fair value as at

31 December

Level 2 Level 3 2016

RZTE—RE

+=-RA=+—H

FE-M E=M ZRAnEE

Commercial property units located iz FA & 7 & 75 22 14 - 218,000,000 218,000,000

in Hong Kong ) %
Parking space located in Hong Kong A7 FA % 4 i) {2 8 {i 500,000 — 500,000
500,000 218,000,000 218,500,000

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

17. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE

FAYLBEBASIELE =M -

17. MEHE B IR

Current portion of finance lease receivable

BEMERKRKAE D

pa
Non-current portion of finance lease receivable &t & 8 & & Y BF 32X 3 B HA 6 5

9,502,409
46,394,116

55,896,525

Minimum lease payments

—FR
Be—-—FEIEBRF

Not later than one year
Later than one year and
not later than five years

Less: unearned finance income & : & & IR g & Y A
=EEWHEFRIBIRE

Present value of minimum
lease payments receivable

Less: Current portion of B B E T E e U

finance lease receivable BR ZX 89 BN EA 28
Non-current portion of finance &t & 70 & f& U4 BR X #9
lease receivable JEBNEREB 5

Present value of minimum
lease payments

RIEHEERE REEERBERE
2017 2016 2017 2016
TE -+ F il — T — + 5 el
=N 12,705,280 9,502,409
= 48,951,381 46,394,116
= 61,656,661 55,896,525
=N (5,760,136) N/A
55,896,525 55,896,525
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

17. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE (continued)

The finance lease receivable were held by Fujian Huamin
Leasing Company Limited (“Fujian Huamin Leasing”), which
was classified as an associate from a subsidiary at the deemed
disposal day. All the finance lease receivable have been
derecognised during the year accordingly.

As at 31 December 2016, the finance lease receivable is
secured over the leased assets, platform engineering vessel.
The lessee retain control of the asset before and after entering
into the arrangements.

Without prejudice to the lessee’s rights and interest under the
sales and leaseback agreement, the Group has the permitted
to sell or transfer the collateral of finance lease receivable to the
third parties in the absence of the consent from the lessee and
guarantor. All the Group’s finance lease receivable is
denominated in RMB, the functional currency of the relevant
group entity. The term of finance lease entered into is 2 years.
In the event the lessee breaches the lease contract, the Group
has the right to use or sell the leased assets and to call for full
or partial repayment of the outstanding balance of finance lease
receivable. The guarantor shall provide a guarantee in respect
of the obligations of the lessee under the sale and leaseback
agreement. Subject to fulfilment of all of its obligations under
the sale and leaseback agreement, the lessee shall purchase
the lease asset at a nominal purchase price of RMB100 within
three business days after the expiry of the term of the lease
under the sale and leaseback agreement.

The interest rate inherent in the lease is fixed at the contract
date for the entire lease term. The effective interest rate is 6%
per annum.

Unguaranteed residual values of assets leased under finance
lease at 31 December 2016 are nil. The finance lease receivable
at the end of the reporting period are neither past due nor
impaired.

17.

MEHEEWRR @

HEEZEEREHERRAR(REES
MREEENREHEREERNR  £K
BAHER ZARHMBRRERSR
REE QT - A REHER KRR
BRAFEERBUBHER

R-B-—RF+-_A=+—8 BEHEE
FEUBR KA — R F & TREMEHER &
HAETLZHZAMZRIDREEE
) 2 Il 4 -

ETrEEAAAEERDEABENERS
BRT  AEEEREEAARERAR
ENBRT MAamE =& HERE R
EHERKERNIEFR AEBZ@ME
HERKEFEIAARESE  ARBA
EREEERE 2 EEY BERER
HRAMFE  AERABEAZEREBESR ' &K
EEEEMARXEEEHBEE  WEK
EEHKBLEERERERBERZ X
BEZEHp FROTERDARZETNZ
HEKE  FAHEAZRERLEAHBHREAT
MEEHRmE="EIERRNNBEBE
ARBI00OTHEEREEE -

REEEEHA  HEMXIAE R B B
BEERE -BRFENEE% -

RZE-—RF+ZA=+—H REHE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

18. LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company had interests
in the following subsidiaries:

18. M B 2 B %l &R

— =

KRR =—_ZFE—+ttF+-_A=+—"H8EK
—ANEFE+-_A=+—BFFEAEZE

EfMBEAREAEFBNOT

Place of
establishment/
incorporation and
principal place of

Name of subsidiaries operations held by the Company
By EM el X
RIREE ERTRAE FMER
i PN =E 38 HEZBED L
2016
7N
%
Direct subsidiaries:
EEMEAAE:
Ming Chuen Construction Company, Hong Kong 100
Limited
AIIZEEFRA A i
Yan Hei Limited Hong Kong 100
CEARAA N
Champ Profit Asia Investment Limited Hong Kong 100
(“Champ Profit”)
AEDAKREERATA(HERA]) BF
Fujian Huamin Leasing Company Limited PRC 51
(note (i) & (iv))
BEEHRAEEERAA HE
(B 5 i) Bz (iv)
Indirect subsidiary:
BENE AR :
Xiamen South East Asia Hotel Company, PRC 100
Limited (note (iii))
EFIREENBERRR A FE
(P = Gii))
Notes: Bt 5% -
(i) The deferred shares carry no rights to dividends and no rights to receive [0)
notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of the Company. In
the winding-up of the Company, holders of the deferred shares are entitled
to receive half of the amounts paid-up or credited as paid-up on shares
after the holders of the ordinary shares of the company have received a
total return of HK$10,000,000 per share.
(i) Fujian Huamin Leasing was established as a sino-foreign co-operative joint (ii)
venture company under the laws of the PRC.
(iii) Xiamen Plaza was established as a sino-foreign co-operative joint venture (i)
company under the laws of the PRC and is currently wholly-owned by Yan
Hei.
(iv) With the subscribe of new capital in Fujian Huamin Leasing in April 2017, (iv)

Proportion of
nominal value
of issued capital/
registered capital

Nominal value of
issued share capital/
registered capital

ERITRE
SMEAEE

Principal activities

FEEK

Ordinary HK$100,000

38 A% 100,000 7T

Ordinary HK$10,000
and Deferred (note (i)
HK$10,000

I 38 I 10,0008 7T
KB FE B (P (1))
10,0007 7T

Registered capital
Ordinary HK$1

AEMERE BB T

Registered capital
RMB170,000,000

it EARARE
170,000,000 7¢

Registered capital
US$5,000,000
it & 455,000,000 7T

i FE B 0 M AR R AL S

Investment holding
REEK

Investment holding

REZER

Investment holding

REZER

Provision of financial
leasing and
associated services

RERMEHER
A 7 AR 75

Hotel operations

B EE T

JF 4 #E W R R 1 7]

the Company’s equity interest in Fujian Huamin Leasing has been diluted
from 51% to 40%, resulting in a loss in control over Fujian Huamin
Leasing. Accordingly, the investment in Fujian Huamin Leasing was
reclassified as an interest in associate as at 31 December 2017. Details
set out in note 19.
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ERREMAEHER T —tFMmAN
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &= — T —+tF+ - A=+ — B It FE LB TIR)

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES

Details of the Group’s interest in associates are as follows:

19. REEE N T 2R

AEBEZBERAFROT

FEE S

Share of net assets

99,639,981

As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Group had interest in
the following associates:

2017
—E—iF

15,361,501

RZE—tF+_A=+—HBE=_ZF—
NET-_BA=1t—HAEE 2B L QA

EACRINNE

Place of
establishment/
incorporation

and principal Proportion of

place of ownership interest
Name of associates operation held by the Group
RYIREE AEBEEML
BENT B O B BEWNAERER LA
%
Fuzhou Harmony Piano Co., PRC 25 25

Ltd. (“Harmony Piano”) (Indirect) (Indirect)

BMMBHNERDERAF F

(TR = 1)

PRC 40 51
(Direct) (Direct)

Fujian Huamin Leasing
Company Limited

BERERABEHEERAR T H (E#)

(BE#&)

Proportion of voting rights

held by the Group

Principal activities

AEERFEHN
EREL B TEXEK
2016
AN
% %
25 25 Design, manufacturing
(Indirect) (Indirect) and distribution of
piano and related
products
() /et ®WERHHE
2 R AR E @
40 51 Provision of financial
(Direct) (Direct) leasing and
associated services
(BE#) (B#) RHEREHEER
16 78 AR 75

RBERARAE

“BR-LEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars)

—tEF+ A=+ —BIUEFECOETIIR)

19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Summarised financial information of associates

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s
associates is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts shown in the associates’
financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRSs.

The associates are accounted for using the equity method in

these consolidated financial statements.

Harmony Piano

10. REEE N B 2 R )

BMENA M BERBE

NTBERR MR NEREH
BERBE  DREFEWHRE LM

-

REEMBRERPZMAR S

PR &R AR

2 =

2017

—E—+t5F

Current assets mENEE 64,555,432
Non-current assets FERBEE 21,447,875
Current liabilities nBEE (17,998,226)
Non-current liabilities FRBAE -
Revenue W %5 58,162,386
Profit/(loss) for the year REERF(EBE) 2,171,002
Other comprehensive income for the year REEH M2 K= -

Total comprehensive income/(expense) REEZEUWKE

for the year (Zd) s 2,171,002

Dividend received from an associate during
the year

WH e —HBEAa

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to
the carrying amounts of the interest in the associates
recognised in the consolidated financial statements as follows:

LB ENBERES

ARTE

2016
—E—RF

57,808,016
18,601,426
(14,963,439)

55,716,458
(1,416,228)

(1,416,228)

B 7% 3R R N

RN E R A BRI ERNHERAOT

2017
—E—tF
Net assets of Harmony Piano MEBRHEZ FEE 68,005,081
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7N 55 (B FE (k0 2 g = G A1
interest in Harmony Piano EABEEBEZADL 25%
Carrying amount of the Group’s 7N £5 [ 9 70 22 8 =
interest in Harmony Piano 2 E=REE 17,001,270

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

2016
—"F

61,446,003

A :1

25%

15,361,501



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)
19. INTEREST IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 10. REE&E N T 2 = )
Summarised financial information of associates MENTZ2HEERBE @
(Continued)
Fujian Huamin Leasing EEERAEE
2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
Current assets mENEE 557,454,033 N/A
Non-current assets EREEE 33,739,720 N/A
Current liabilities REBEE (140,149,268) N/A
Non-current liabilities FERBBE (244,447,707) N/A
Revenue g 11,527,601 N/A
Profit for the year REE 2 F 3,716,136 N/A
Other comprehensive income for the year AREEEME2EKZE = N/A
Total comprehensive income for the year AREEELHWP AT 3,716,136 N/A
Dividend received from an associate during
the year WE e —MBE A a2 RE N/A
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to i A ES R BB RERDN
the carrying amount of the interest in associates recognised in AR A EANIEESEENHENT
the consolidated financial statements as follows:
2017 2016
—ZE—tF —E—RF
Net assets of Fujian Huamin Leasing BREERHEHENFEE 206,596,778 N/A
Proportion of the Group’s ownership interest in AREBREEER
Fujian Huamin Leasing 0 & R A R HE L 40% N/A
Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in Fujian 7N & B A 18 12 ZE
Huamin Leasing HEMER@EE 82,638,711 N/A

mEzREaRAT —s2-—tzsx 139
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

20. INVENTORIES 20. 78
2017
—E—tfF
Consumables 518 M 196,728 223,214
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. EZ R EMEWRERR
2017 2016
—E2—tF AN
Trade receivables FEWE 5 IR 3K 1,372,472 952,376
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREEE (75,110) (70,189)
1,297,362 882,187
Other receivables, utility deposits and Ham gl ss - 2B
prepayments RiERE M IENKIA 14,455,531 16,130,649
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o RER B R (13,576,311) (14,520,912)
879,220 1,609,737
Total trade and other receivables B 5 & H h fE U AR 5K AR R 2,176,582 2,491,924
The Group allows an average credit period of 45 days (2016: AEEGRTHESERLPFTHO+TAKR(Z
45 days) to its trade customers. The following is an aged E-RF-HT+AR)NEERH - REE
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts WAEEARBEZAENHRREREE
presented based on the invoice dates at the end of the ZFEREZERZRRDTAT ¢

reporting period:

2017 2016

ZBE—tF —E-RF

Current to six months BN HE Z= /< 1E A 1,295,327 834,656
Over six months and within one year NEARERE—FRA — 895
Over one year HBiE—F 2,035 46,636

1,297,362 882,187
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balances are debtors
with aggregate amount of HK$2,035 (2016: HK$47,531) which
are past due as at the end of the reporting date for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track
record with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors
of the Company are of the opinion that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does
not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
palances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not
impaired:

1. ESREMEVRRR @

RBEHER AEEHA 2 BHEER
Bz2RWKEZHIAF2,0358TT(ZF—X
F 4753178 70) - NEHE I K H AR R
HEBERIER -

BREERECRREREASERE
RECBNBIEF REBELR &
RAEERREF /L FTERERER
B RAEELERREEANE NEEH
Ym o 7 5= B30 R B 5% A BRI A (AT R
R REERTT-

AEEEBRERFAREZEKE S
R BRE DT

2016
—=

— =

Past due but not impaired
Over six months and within one year
Over one year

i —F

BB EOR (B
NEANRER—FAR

895
46,636

47,531
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Movements in the allowance for doubtful debts on trade
receivables are as follows:

21.

ESREMEVRERR @

BERUIERRERGEEBHWT

2016
—E—RF
Balance at the beginning of year F YR 74,942
Exchange adjustment INETERZERN T E (4,759)
Balance at the end of year FR &8 70,189
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts on other EmEWEGRREREG 22T
receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
—B—tF —E-RF
Balance at the beginning of year F ) 45 R 14,520,912 15,518,873
Recovery of impairment losses W 2] H b 8 U BR SR 2
previously written off R B TR (1,855,223) -
Impairment losses recognised on HibEWERERBEZ
other receivables Bk — 2,053
Exchange adjustment INEERZERNTE 910,622 (1,000,014)
Balance at the end of year FIRAE R 13,576,311 14,520,912

Included in the allowances for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables and other receivables with an
aggregate balances of HK$75,110 and HK$13,576,311 (2016:
HK$70,189 and HK$14,520,912) respectively. The individually
impaired receivables related to customers that were in financial
difficulties or in dispute and the management assessed that the
recovery of the amounts is doubtful. The Group does not hold
any collateral over these balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22 HEe RIBITEER

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFHRRS 37,230,940 60,039,994
Short-term bank deposits BERITF R 7,045,126 40,000,000
44,276,066 100,039,994

BOTEBREBERTERZEH A R
HoRHRITERZBEITENEHO9E
F10EZEEFEFE (ZF—71F -
FRRON4EE1A5E) o

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The short-term bank deposits carry fixed
interest rates which range from 0.90% to 1.30% (2016: 0.14%
to 1.15%) per annum.

RZZBE—+tF+_A=+—H AEEFE
HEF BeRBITEHKAEARE(TAR
B |) & B8 K #932,304,4108 L (=& — 7~
F 56,281,241 87m) - B EHPEAZ
A B AT B BE R SN B & FTBR o

At 31 December 2017, time deposit, cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$32,304,410 (2016: HK$56,281,241). The
remittance of these funds out of the PRC is subject to the
exchange control restrictions imposed by the government of the
PRC.

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 23. EZ RHEMENERER
2017 2016
—E—+tF —EF—RF
Trade payables e E 5 R 1,317,857 3,073,464
Other payables H i EMNER 8,338,738 8,048,300
Total trade and other payables B 5 R H b BT BR KRR 9,656,595 11,121,764

BNEZRARFERREERARER
BZRRESMAT :

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

2017 2016

—2-+tF —F-R
Current to six months BN HA Z= /< & A 1,157,065 2,808,517
Over six months and within one year NEAK ER—FNR 4,207 55,066
Over one year Bl —F 156,585 209,881
1,317,857 3,073,464

The average credit period is 60 days (2016: 60 days).

R) e

RBERARAE

FAGEHRRANTR(ZTE—RF R+
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

mEe

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &£ — Z

R EELEAC Y

24. DEFERRED TAXATION

The following are the major deferred tax balances recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior year:

Deferred tax liabilities

—tEF+ A=+ —BIUEFECOETIIR)

24, EEFIE

UTHBAEERAFERBEFEHER
CEBREHBEHRNEES

EHREEE

Accelerated tax

depreciation Total
MERBIEFE HEE
At 1 January 2016 R-—E—R"F—H—H 4,722,053 4,722,053
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) NBzmPE R (FzE9) (48,506) (48,506)
At 31 December 2016 and 1 January 2017 RZE—R"F+-_A=+—H
;E=—ZFE—+F—H—H 4,673,547 4,673,547
Credit to profit or loss (note 9) REZFE R () (396,882) (396,882)
At 31 December 2017 N—-ZE—+tEFE+=-_B=+—H 4,276,665 4,276,665
Deferred tax assets EEHRBEBEE
Tax losses
BlIEEE
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 R-E—RF—AF—HB - —ZT—XRF+_A
and 31 December 2017 =+t BERR-_ZE—+tF+-_A=+—H 1,894,269

At 31 December 2017, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$166,352,794 (2016: HK$160,255,786) available for offset
against future taxable profits that may be carried forward
indefinitely. The unrecognised tax losses arising from subsidiaries
operated in the PRC will expire within 5 years. No tax losses
were expired during the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016.

At 31 December 2017, deferred tax assets have been
recognised in respect of tax losses of HK$11,480,421 (2016:
HK$11,480,421). No deferred tax asset has been recognised in
respect of the remaining tax losses of HK$154,872,373 (2016:
HK$148,775,365) due to the unpredictability of future profit
streams.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &= — T —+tF+ - A=+ — B It FE LB TIR)

SHARE CAPITAL 25, [ 2
2017 2016
—E—tfF —E—REF
Number Number
of shares of shares HKS$
BEZHE 7 EH B BT
Issued and fully paid BT REBRKRA
At 1 January n—A—H 1,145,546,000 898,839,029 801,360,000 747,839,049
Recognition of equity-settled #E 32 LA B& 15 75 =X 52 1+
share-based B 5138 (MR ()
payment (note (i) — - 344,186,000 150,999,980
At 31 December R+-=—HA=+—H 1,145,546,000 el N2l 1,145,546,000 898,839,029
Note: B 5
0] In August 2016, the Company allotted and issued 344,186,000 ordinary (0] RZF—XNFENA AAAI AR X FET
shares of approximately HK$0.43 per share as consideration for the 344,186,000 F i A% * AR B E TR EERNH B
acquisition of investment properties. BHN0ASHE L BETIERBREREMEZRE -
RESERVES 26. f# &

Details of changes in reserves of the Group are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 74.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt (including
trade and other payables), net of cash and cash equivalents
and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, reserves and accumulated losses.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

AEEFRREH CFBHEANET4EZE

ARAERDE -

27. EXERERE

AEFERHER UHERAEEETE

BREEESBELEXT

Al B 5 B B 1Mk

BEHERBEAEHRBRREREE - NEE

ZEERBETF -

AEEZEARBREERE(RRERESR
HEMNER) RekBREFEREN

RAD A A S -
A EER B -

BEEETR

REEIEBEMMINEB MBI EARF K -

RBERARAE

“BR-LEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

27. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Gearing ratio

The management of the Group reviews the capital structure on
a regularly basis. As part of this review, the management of the
Group considers the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new shares issue as well as
the issue of new debts.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

27. EXRABEE @

SBERER

AEEERETHHENENRE K&
BEREESEEREARARTRERZ
BAENRRIESEHNERBN - RIFE
BEENZZ AEESRERERE B
THREETHNERAFTEREBERN
RiE -

BELERAFERRNOT

follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
Debt (note (7)) & I8 (M 7E () 9,656,595 11,121,764
Cash and cash equivalents He RRESZEE (VNG  (100,039,994)
Net debt & 5KF BH (34,619,471) (88,918,230)
Equity (note (i) % 7 4 2= (B & (i) 401,258,024 429,275,037
Net debt to equity ratio V5 TH BRI 7N 45 b K N/A N/A
Notes: BteE -

(i) Debt comprises trade and other payables as detailed in note 23.

(ii) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

28. T A

(a

tRITESE

2016
—E—RF
Financial assets SMEE
Loans and receivables B3 e W skE
— Trade and other receivables — 8 5 &k H th fE I BR X 2,138,586 2,114,394
— Finance lease receivable —BEHEREIKER — 9,502,409
— Cash and bank balances — B RiB1TEH 44,276,066 100,039,994
46,414,652 111,656,797
Financial liabilities o= =R
Amortised cost X ) N
— Trade and other payables — B REMEMNERR 9,046,672 10,158,580

Financial risk management objectives
and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, finance lease receivable, cash and bank
balances and trade and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes.
The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the manner
in which it manages and measures the risk.

(b)

THEREEBRBRMEE

AEBZIESRTABREES
REMBEWRER BEHEERKE
K BRERRITER BHREAM
ENER - ZEE2RTAFBRS
MERE - EEAER LS/ T
AnEReREsak(E%ERR -
) %R [ e e E At (B AR R B = B R BR)
@A - TXHEHIEBZESR
TRABEZEE &6 R EZFR
BZBRR - BEEEBEEREEZS
[\ B o DA BE R B B M B R BUE B
Z¥EE o

FEBCRMIAREUZERRE
B AL R -

RBERARAE
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)

Market risk

Currency risk

Substantial revenue and cost of the Group are
denominated in the functional currency of the group
entities. Certain trade and other receivables, cash and
bank balances, and trade and other payables are
denominated in foreign currencies. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy, as the
management considers the exposure to foreign currency
risk is insignificant to the Group. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group is not exposed to significant fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
currently does not have interest rate hedging policy.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure
should the need arise.

Other price risk

As the Group has no significant investments at the end of
reporting period, the Group is not subject to significant
price risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

28. €@ T A )
b cmEREEBEMBEK

(#)

™ %5 2 b2

S B
AEEFTERSERKARABEL
AR ERGTE - EETESRE
KRR Be RRITEHRNE
Z REAMEMERRAAINE SEE
B -AKERBYETHINES
KHPITAE-BEEEESEVEE
HONE R R - 700 B E B
EANINERR

MERBER
AEBMIREEANA A BERE
EREASRBEFEAR AEH
FEEMMEHRTA BERE
BEZHNEZRBRERBENEZE
HMEARFI AR -

B 4% [ b2
AAAEBAREERKRE AT
WRBEBRNWERER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will
cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure to
discharge obligation by the counterparties is arising from
the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies.

Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid fund
which are deposited with several banks with high credit
ratings, the Group does not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

28. €@ T A )
b) c@EKREEBEMBEK

(#)

EERRE
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ZNE ISR SR IR R
RZBEREERRT B EE MR
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REEREEERR EEECHE
kK—HABREEERFERE
Btk EMEERF  BARER
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BEFERREER  ~A&BERF
FRERE % EERZ AU E KA -
ARMREEZWERE (FHEMZ
MEEBE BRIEMS EEERR
AEBEZEERBE AERE -

BERBETRAEBESEEFRZE
T HREEBRPESREERER
REFABRSZEREEZFEEM
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. T @t T & @)

b)) EREREEEREMBE

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Liquidity tables

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The tables have been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

(#)

RBECcHEMER
REEBRBHELRAKRE  AEEE
BEREFBHSRERBSEEER
EEERBRRZKFULIHAE
BreaBELRERERERBZY
2,

REBEZH &

TRAIAEEMBABZHTA
MEMBR ZERESIARNA
MEIBZEEABRHEERBES
BB EZBHERS - ZEH
KRRBEAEERBRERZ R
PRAMMEEZENRASCRE -

On demand Total

or less than 1to3 3 months 1to Over undiscounted Carrying amount
one month months  to 1 year 5years 5 years cash flows at 31 December
RER +=A
BN —Z% ZfAREZE —FF i) FHER Er=E=Z
—f&A =@A - RE "E REmE HE

2017 —E—tF
Trade payables ¥ 5B IR ALY 1,317,857 1,317,857
Other payables H i F& {5 BR 5K 7,658,738 680,000 8,338,738 8,338,738
8,976,595 680,000 9,656,595 9,656,595

2016 —E—REF
Trade payables E ZEERZ 3,073,464 — — — — 3,073,464 3,073,464
Other payables Eftu AR 7,418,300 630,000 — - — 8,048,300 8,048,300
10,491,764 630,000 — — — 11,121,764 11,121,764
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Fair value measurement of financial

instruments

This note provides information about how the Group
determines fair values of various financial assets and
financial liabilities.

Some of the Group’s financial instruments are measured
at fair value for financial reporting purposes.

There were no transfers among Level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year. (2016: Nil)

The fair values of the financial assets included in the Level
3 categories have been determined in accordance with
generally accepted pricing models based on a discounted
cash flow analysis, with the most significant inputs being
the discount rate that reflects the credit risk of
counterparties.

28. €@t T B um)
c) EMIE2AREEE

ASARRAEEENMERASRE
MBEEMMBARNARE:

BEEF=-BRZEMEENAAE
BNVRBERBERERESNMOHAR
ETEEABE EPHRETEZHEHA
DERARRZZHFHEERR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. €@t T B @)
(c) Fair value measurement of financial c) EMIE2AREEE@®
instruments (Continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements B2 AREBEFTEHR
31 December 2017 —E—t+tH&+=-HA=+—H
Financial
T
designated as
at FVTPL
EERBBR
8 2= D& B
AEEZ
SREE
Opening balance A7) e BE =
Purchases B A 74,780,973
Disposals & (76,108,219)
Total gains in profit or loss RE=mF 2 B = 760,846
Exchange adjustments INBIERZRN T E 566,400
Closing balance HAR B %8 =
31 December 2016 —E—RE+=ZA=1+—H
Financial assets
designated as
at FVTPL
EEABIB
18 A = R
RREZ
Opening balance BR 7)) e 5E =
Purchases =N 86,938,486
Disposals == (85,870,350)
Total gains in profit or loss REmR 2B = 473,198
Exchange adjustments GNEEFE R = By s & (1,541,334)
Closing balance HAR PR %R —
Of the total gains or losses for the year included in profit ERERAREHANZIEESBIBRE
or loss, HK$760,846 (2016: HK$473,198) relates to HURBRA R EZ 4 5 & E 760,846
financial assets designated as at fair value through profit BIL(ZE —/NE 473,198 ) 2
or loss held at the end of the current reporting period. Fair HARNEEZERFANRRZXERE
value gains or losses on financial assets designated as at BRERAKFEFE2EZT - BEAL
fair value through profit or loss are included in “other gains BzEFIURMALRBZEHEE
and losses”. W B BT E M kR H -
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

29. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

20 KEHEZH

Minimum lease payments paid under operating 74 [E 1R 15 48 &
leases during the year: 2 B AR AT RUEE
Premises ) 2

HE B

AEEAEAEA
2016
—EF—RF
1,154,880 1,096,560

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

REERREER  AEBEAGE KT
HZREHEAERENKERT ¢

Within one year
In the second to fifth years inclusive

1
H

2017 2016
S5 =~
1,154,880 1,154,880
223,525 1,378,405
1,378,405 2,533,285

At 31 December 2017, operating leases relate to office
premises with lease term of two years (2016: two years), with
an option to extend for further one year, where the Group is not
going to extend. All operating lease contract contain market
review clauses in the event that the Group exercise its option to
renew. The Group does not have an option to purchase the
leased assets at the expiry of the lease period.

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$6,079,993 (2016: HK$2,999,966). All of the Group's
investment properties are held for rental purposes. The Group
leases its investment properties under operating lease
arrangements, with leases negotiated for terms ranging from
one to four years (2016: one to three years).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with tenants for the following future minimum lease receivable:

R-ZE—tF+-_A=+—RH A@EHEL
ENREHEHAMF(ZT-—RNFEM
F) AAUATEEREEN —F - EXE
B EpE - AEKEHEARBES
AEBETERENRRHOTSEBIER - A
SEREERRRUBEEEL AR
B

AEBRHAA

REARRzZ2WEERSBALD A
6,079,993/ JT (= & — /X 4F © 2,999,966 %5
) ARBEREMERRFEELAR
B AREFAURKLHELHLAYWE - AT
BEWECHAERPAERBAESRS A5 —
ENE(ZT—RF: —B=F)o

REEHRREER  ARBEAHARTE
REMESOREWRKRBELT :

Within one year —F R
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEERFA

2017 2016
—z—+5 [EEEEES
10,965,643 7,568,459
6,060,190 9,826,145
17,025,833 17,394,604
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACTIONS

()

(b)

Employee share-based compensation
benefits

Employee share-based compensation benefits represent
the fair value of employee services estimated to be
received in exchange for the grant of the relevant options
over the relevant vesting periods, the total of which is
based on the fair value of the options at grant date. The
amount for each period is determined by spreading the
fair value of the options over the relevant vesting periods
and is recognised as employee benefits expense with a
corresponding increase in the employee share-based
compensation reserve.

Share options

Purpose of the share options scheme

The purpose of the share options scheme is to provide
participants of the same with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the
Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company
and its shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants of the share options
scheme

(i) any Executive, Non-executive or Independent Non-
executive Director of any member of the Group or an
entity in which the Group holds an interest (“Affiliate”); (ii)
any employee or officer (whether full time or part time)
(“Employee”) of the Group or an Affiliate; (i) any
shareholder of any member of the Group or an Affiliate
who has, in the opinion of the Board of Directors,
contributed or may contribute to the development and
growth of the Group; (iv) any customer, supplier, agent,
partner, consultant or adviser of or contractor to any
member of the Group or an Affiliate; or (v) the trustee of
any trust the beneficiary of which or any discretionary
trust the discretionary objects of which include any
director, employee, customer, supplier, agent, partner,
consultant or adviser of or contractor to any member of
the Group or an Affiliate; or (v a company beneficially
owned by any director, employee, consultant, customer,
supplier, agent, partner or adviser of or contractor any
member of the Group or an Affiliate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A (4F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

30. UGB ABER 2R Z @

(b) Share options (continued)

(b) &R FE @

Total number of securities issuable

The maximum number of shares which may be granted
under the share options scheme and any other schemes
involving the issue or grant of options or similar rights over
shares or other securities by the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 10% of shares in issue as at the date
of approval of the share options scheme.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
Unless approved by the shareholders, no option may be
granted to any eligible participants which if exercised in
full would result in the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options already granted
or to be granted to such eligible participant under the
share options scheme (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in the 12-month period up to and
including the date of such new grant exceeding 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
such new grant.

Period to take up share options and minimum
period to hold before exercise

There is no minimum period within which the shares
option must be taken up or for which a share option must
be held before it can be exercised.

Amount payable to take up share options and
time to accept offer

An offer for the granting of share options under the share
options scheme shall be accepted within 28 days from
the offer date and by way of payment of a consideration
of HK$1.

Maximum period for exercising an option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the share options scheme at any time during a period
to be determined and notified by the Board of Directors to
each participant, which period may commence on the
date on which the offer for the grant of options is made
but shall end in any event not more than 10 years from
the date of grant of the option.

A BITHE S 2B
e B ey kgl e
R (BEAR R BTN IRBRE
PR MBS 2 BOER) &
BAaRTERBERESEEER
BB HATRD 2 10% °

E2HEAZRSEHE
BRI AL ESN - EM A B2 A
EREBRER ZEBEREES
BOTERIEBTRODABE ALK
REBREFSIDCHRAGEHE
ZBBE(BREITE  FHERT
EERE)BITERE THRIT IR
MBS REEFHEAR(BREE
Bt —EAMEATFEAARA
R HEBHPEEITHAZ 1% -

wiE B RE B RATER
RERABE
BREYEVARERBANITR
AR AEZEEHBZRE -

wBERE BN RIERE
MEE 2
REBREASILEEBREZR
# AEEZAHES T NABRA
A MHREB1UBTZ T AEMR -

TEBEREZzRRAE
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30. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
TRANSACT'ONS (Continued)

(b) Share options (continued)

Exercise price

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the
Board of Directors of the Company and shall not be less
than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option, which must be a
business day;

(i)  an amount equivalent to the average closing price
of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
relevant option; and

(iiy ~ the nominal value of a share.

Life of the share options scheme

The share options scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of two years commencing on the date of
adoption of the share options scheme.

There were no Company’s share options held by
Directors and employees as at 31 December 2017 and
2016.

No options were granted under the share options scheme
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

31. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

32

31. EXREIE

Commitments for the acquisition of

property, plant and equipment BB ERRAX

BERWBERE  #as Rk

2017 2016
Sl T 7
1,596,766 1,893,508

RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Scheme under rules and regulations of MPF Schemes
Ordinance for all its employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiary in the PRC are
members of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The subsidiary is
required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the retirement benefit scheme to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of HK$692,494
(2016: HK$755,301) represents contributions paid to these
plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.
There was no outstanding contribution as at 31 December
2017 and 2016.

32. RKBH &

AEBRERHMEATE2((RES]
ERPI2RAIRAG - REMBREEER
RUBES - SEFTHNEERAREEN

DHAREEAREE -

AEBRBEREZHEB AR ERS
ZERBRA 2E-BAEREEHEBER
P& RRBHNEE - HBRBART
BB E B 2Lt R AR R A8 R 5
SR AEERUERAKRBAFTE 2HE—F
EELEEMRK -

FrE X H ABRREBRRK 56924947 0 (=
T —RNF 755301 L) ERKAEER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

33. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 33. i 8HE—xHE QT

With the subscribe for new capital in Fujian Huamin Leasing in
April 2017, the Company’s equity interest in Fujian Huamin
Leasing has been diluted from 51.0% to 40.0%, resulting in a
loss in control over Fujian Huamin Leasing. Accordingly, the
investment in Fujian Huamin Leasing was reclassified as interest
in an associate.

The assets and liabilities of Fujian Huamin Leasing were
derecognised from the Group’s consolidated statement of
financial position and the interest in Fujian Huamin Leasing has
been accounted for as an associate using equity method. The
fair value of the 40.0% retained interest in Fujian Huamin
Leasing at the date on which the control was lost is regarded
as the cost on initial recognition of the investment in Fujian
Huamin Leasing as an associate.

BEAAR_-_ZT—+tFNAREREE
MEEMHELR ARAAYEEZERMA
EHIRER £51.0% %58 £40.0% 0 X
ARARYEEEFERASRETHEFE - R
I BEREERHENRENETNRES

g8 2 T 35 o

BEERNEMENEERBRE BN BN
NEEBRTHELAZERERHEEN
oS AAR BEERHEERX
EEHIEZ BON400%BRERORRE
B RERYHEEERHEHERENIGRHE

HK$
BT
Fair value of interest retained REER EE 76,655,244
Analysis of assets and liabilities over which control was lost: HAEESHNEEMEBEBEN DT
HKS$
BT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W~ W% K& 4,914
Finance lease receivable B & AR & U R X 44,547,197
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables E 5 & H U BR 3k
Finance lease receivable B & A & E U R X 10,713,883
Bank balances and cash 5 & KIRTT & &R 36,263,047
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables, other payables B S EMNER  EMEMERR (699,918)
Tax payable FE 1S 18 (230,570)
Net assets disposal of HEMEEFE 90,598,553
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For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

33. DEEMED DISPOSALS OF A B HRALE—RNELQE w
SU BS'D'ARY (Continued)
Deemed loss on disposal of Fujian Huamin SAHEEEMEREZEE
Leasing
HK$
78 TT
Net assets disposed of HEMREE (90,598,553)
Fair value of retained interest REBEZZARE 76,655,244
Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR 44,387,980
Capital contribution payable JERTH) & ZAN)E A (30,449,983)
Cumulative exchange difference in respect of KEEZERBMEMREZ R IZEHIREM
the net assets of Fujian Huamin Leasing HEZYBIEZNFES
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on RETER =5
loss of control Fujian Huamin Leasing (897,012)
Loss on deemed disposal BAEALE—RNBARZESE (402,324)
Net cash outflow arising on disposal & M E IR 2 F R
Cash and cash equivalents of Fujian Huamin RARLEEEREREME 2
Leasing deemed disposal of RekERBELEE 36,263,047
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Extension of operating period of Xiamen
Plaza

Pursuant to an agreement entered into by Yan Hei and Railway
Department on 1 October 1985 for co-operation on the
construction and operation of Xiamen Plaza and as
supplemented and amended subsequently on 18 December
1987 and 21 January 1992 (the “CJV Agreement”), the
operating period for Xiamen Plaza will end on 11 December
2016. On 6 June 2005 and 20 July 2005, the Company
announced that, Yan Hei entered into an extension agreement
with Railway Department, and Fujian Enterprises (Holdings)
Company Limited (“Fujian Enterprises”) (as a guarantor) on 9
May 2005 (“Extension Agreement”), in which, amongst others,
the operation period of Xiamen Plaza will be extended for an
additional 10 years up to 31 December 2025 and a change in
the terms of the CJV Agreement in respect of the annual
amounts to be distributed by Yan Hei to Railway Department.
Pursuant to the terms of the Extension Agreement, Yan Hei has
agreed to pay annual distributions to Railway Department
during the operating period of Xiamen Plaza up to year 2025 as
set out below:

2005 to 2006 : US$70,000 per year
2007 to 2011 : US$100,000 per year
2012 to 2025 : US$200,000 per year

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments
for future minimum lease payments under the Extension
Agreement which fall due as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

M. EBALTZRS

ERRBEZEEH

RECERARRBAEIAIN-NANLSF
TA—HAIZAGEREREEZEER
ZEARBEZRORNZHE(ERE
R—ANLEFE+_AtNBER-—ANLZ
F-A-t+-—BREARREFT (A EB
&) RAZKREMBR _T—RF+=
A+—B&®IE-RZZETRFASBR
—EERFLA-+B ARQRAEM £
EHEERBIMER(KB)ERAR ([
MEREDEERAER _ZTZTAFH
ANBRIYERBH(EREG#E]) BB
BELEZRENBN _T_AF+=
A=+t —B&R -TERBHEFTHEHFTE
BIBIERBERELCEZKRERTF
E_E_AFt+A=t—H LEXEHE
MEFHCENRTHER Z2HE LA
EmZ G - REERBRGER  CEE
AERNREREHEAEE_T_AFX
Mo FEER - EEBIEMT :

—EEEas F 4 70,0003 7T
—ETRF

—mm g % 100,000 7T
—F **i

—E——F% & 4 200,000 7T
—_= :ﬁ$

REEBRGEER  AEERBERHH
ZAREE RENRBBELT :

Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth years inclusive MEERFA
Over five years HiE A F

2017 2016
—E—+tF —EF—RF
1,560,000 1,550,920
6,240,000 6,203,680
6,240,000 6,203,680
14,040,000 13,958,280

In addition, Fujian Enterprises irrevocably undertakes to Railway
Department that it will guarantee performance by Yan Hei of its
obligations under the CJV Agreement (as amended and
extended).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Extension of operating period of Xiamen
Plaza (Continued)

Railway Department is beneficially owned by the State Railway
Department. To the best knowledge, information and belief of
the directors of the Company, having made all reasonable
enquiries, Railway Department is considered as an independent
third party, it has no effective interest in the operations of
Xiamen Plaza.

Fujian Enterprises is a trading conglomerate incorporated in
Hong Kong with limited liability, and under administration of
Fujian Provincial State-owned Asset Administration Commission
of the PRC. Both Fujian Enterprises and the Company are
ultimately owned by Fujian provincial government of the PRC.
There are no common directors among Fujian Enterprises and
any member of the Group.

Lease agreements in respect of certain
premises at Xiamen Plaza

On 13 April 2015, the Group announced that, Xiamen Plaza as
lessor and Huamin Mingrui (Xiamen) Tourism Company Limited
EERZEE(EP)REAR A F) (‘Huamin Mingrui®), a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of Fujian Huamin Industrial Group Company
Limited fREEEEZEEE)ER A (‘Huamin Industrial”), as
lessee entered into the lease agreements in respect of the lease
of certain premises at Xiamen Plaza for a term of two years
from 16 April 2015 to 15 April 2017 and renewed one year from
16 April 2017 to 15 April 2018.

M. EBBALT 2RI @

ERFRE LS H @)

HEPNESHEAASBEREER - BE
EREE—UEEEREMAA  FERE
B EREERBHIBEERER SR
RBUE=ZT  EERKLERBEPLER
PRAga o

FREED—ZFZREBEMARLZEE
SEXESAERAR ATEREEHEE
BEERZEQER -EHEERARA
HRPEEREERNRRES - EHEE
EAEEFEMREARNYEEMNARE
=

FEARBETYURNERHS

R-ZFE-—AFOA+=B AKHEHER
REERHEANMERZE(EM) Kt
BRAR(EMEZER]) HREEREX
(EE)BERAR(EZEHEX])F2EHR
BB B R RIVE R AR A - BT SZ A & e
MEBEBEERENET —SF/ER - HHAR
—E-RAFEA+TARBE-_ZE—tFMH
At+tAAREE - FH_ZT—tFMA
TARBE-F-NAFHA+AAB -

Rental income received (included in & WA
revenue from hotel operations)
Rental deposit received

WA

(BENBEEE 2 W)

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
1,203,370 1,771,135
193,250 588,624
1,396,620 2,359,759

mEzREaRAT —=—tzsx 161
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Lease agreements in respect of certain
premises at Xiamen Plaza (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted
with Huamin Mingrui for future minimum lease receivable as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

M. BBALT 2RI @

FRRBETYRNEKGS
(#)

REERREER  AEERERET L
AREHEE HEBRERMT

2017
=

Within one year —FN

245,000 439,285

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of Directors during the year was as follows:

TEEBABZHE
AEEEEHFHMOT :

2017
—E—iF

Short-term employee benefits SHIE T 18 A

2,315,000

The remuneration of Directors is determined by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the performance of
individuals and market trend.

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE R R M (F)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—tH&+ - A=+ —H L FE (AETIIR)

34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Acquisition of investment properties

On 17 June 2016, Champ Profit and Huamin Tourism Limited (as
the “Vendor”) being a wholly owned subsidiary of Huamin
Industrial entered into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant
to which the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell investment
properties to Champ Profit. HC Technology Capital Company
Limited (the “Subscriber”) being a wholly owned subsidiary of
Huamin Industrial. The Vendor, the Company and Champ Profit
entered into a subscription agreement, pursuant to which the
parties agreed that the consideration should be satisfied by (i)
the allotment and issue of 344,186,000 new ordinary shares of
Company to the Subscriber and (i) the cash payment of HK$20
by Champ Profit to the Vendor. The transactions were completed
in August 2016.

Office rental and building management fee of
Fujian Holdings Limited company’s office

Office rental and management fee were paid to Fujian
Properties Limited (“Fujian Properties”) for the Company’s office
at Unit 3308, 33rd Floor, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong for a term of 3 years from
11 March 2016 to 10 March 2019. Both Fujian Properties and
the Company are ultimately owned by Huamin Industrial. There
are no common directors among Fujian Properties and any
member of the Group.

M. EBBALT 2RI @

WRBRENR

—E-RNERNATER  ZETARER
RFEBARARI(ATEHHEIER ] I A=
MEE s 2EWBRARGINES Has ' B
I EFERGHEELEREYE LA
IR ERBHIEEFR A A (AT
BREADYAEZEHEXEZZENBA
Ale BH AR A Rz B KRB
HZoBRE O ZFTREWREBEEABMNRE
fig 2% K 2% 17 /K A 7] 344,186,000 % 7 I
B% 45 R B8 A K (i) BB 2508 58 K 2 142078 T
REKLBEH BEETHRETZRIN_-ZT
—ANFNATK -

BEBEZERERAIATARLAENES
RYXEERSE
RARIRZERMEFR AR ([ERYE])
BB T 38 5 2005% (= 12 5 0 7 R
33123306 £ 3308 EL 2 HAEH T K
EIEE LS HSHE  H2016F3A11HER
20193 A10H Ik - EEWEFM AR 7T
RERBEERKES - ERMENSEEK
BrEWRERRMNES -

2017 2016
—E—+t&F —E—RF

Office rental paid BNz AERE
Building management fee ENZMEERE

1,154,880 962,400
163,608 136,340

1,318,488

1,098,740

MAEZRARAR —Z—LtHFFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e B S R R M A ()

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed in the note 34 in respect of the acquisition of
the investment properties, the Group did not enter into other
major non-cash transaction during the year ended 31
December 2016. There was no major non-cash transactions
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB KRB
Investment properties "EWE
Interest in an associate REERRZERE
Investment in subsidiaries BB AR Z2&’E
Deferred tax assets BEETTEE E
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables 5 N H e AR R
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHE R
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K H M FE AT BR 5K
Net current assets RBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBER

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017

B.TEHFBRERS

BRI ES4FT I EE U EER E W
AEEREBEE_T—tF+_A=+—
AN =ZZF—

NEZFERNILEETLEHA

2017
—E—iF

188,893
49,300,000
76,423,690

206,353,291
1,894,269

334,160,143

265,906
9,834,594

10,100,500

1,360,774

8,739,726

342,899,869

EAFRER G -HE-_ZT—LF+_HA
T+ BHZEERTEETBIBERS -

36. R A BEMRRREER

2016

— T

229,380
48,500,000

252,900,119
1,894,269

303,523,768

361,348
43,014,331

43,375,679

977,993

42,397,686

345,921,454



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
e KRR (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) &= — T —+tF+ - A=+ — B It FE LB TIR)

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. & D 3] Bt i 4k SR B 5 18 )
AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

2016
—E-RF
Capital and reserves BEXRFE
Equity attributable to owners of the KRG B NEG Em
Company
Share capital N 895,839,029 898,839,029
Reserves ER (LPETLEEIGE (552,951,811)
Total equity IR A E 25 48 5B 342,865,633 345,887,218
Non-current liabilities FEREBEARE
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAE 34,236 34,236
342,899,869 345,921,454
The Company’s statement of financial position was approved EEeR - NF=ZA=-+=ZHE#t
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 March HEWREREREE Z RRIMBARRE :

2018 and was signed on its behalf by:

Liu Hongijian Chen Danyun
Director Director
EF EF

mEERERAT —=—tsx® 16D
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

RE MR RN E (E)

For the year ended 31 December 2017 (in HK Dollars) B Z —Z—t &+ A=+ —H L FE (AETHIR)

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 36. A A @B BR AR EE R @

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Movement in the Company’s reserves FiN/NETR R B0
Accumulated
losses Total

ZitE#E =
At 1 January 2016 R-E—X&—HA—H (552,812,851)  (552,812,851)
Loss for the year REEFBIE (138,960) (138,960)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 7N 4 & H fih 2 [ 5 5% — =
Total comprehensive expense for the year AR [E 2 H X 4258 (138,960) (138,960)

At 31 December 2016 and at1 January HEZE=-ZE—~"E+=-A=+—HEK

2017 —E2—+t#—HF—H (552,951,811)  (552,951,811)
Loss for the year REEFBIE (21,585) (21,585)
Other comprehensive expense for the year 7N 4 & H fih 2 [ 5 &% — =
Total comprehensive expense for the year 78 4E & 2 [H 5 X 4 58 (21,585) (21,585)
At 31 December 2017 BE-ZE—tfF

+=B=+-8” (552,973,396)  (552,973,396)

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017



Particulars of investment property interests held by the Group at 31
December 2017 are as follows:

Particulars of Property Interests

MEREFE

AEBR _ZT—+tF+_A=1t—HFRFAEZ

REWERDFBOT :

Investment properties

BREWME

Gross floor area

Leasehold expiry (square feet)
AEEEE

B Em B (FHFR)

Group’s

Year of attributable
completion interest
rEE

&M F 0 FE 15 R 2=

Hong Kong
58

Commercial

[RiEkZES

Shop Nos. 1, 3 and 4
on Ground Floor together
with open yard adjoining
thereto and the whole of
First and Second Floors,
Sun Ming Court,

Nos. 84-90

Castle Peak Road,
Sham Shui Po, Kowloon
JUBE IR IK IS

& 1L 38 84-905%

7 RA

R 3455

& 4 & AR &
LRI —1E
F_grE

Units A, C and D on

21st Floor, Wing On House,
71 Des Voeux Road Central,
Hong Kong

B

R

EEER 75
KEZEBRE
21%A - CEDZE

2047 10,464

—EM+F 10,464

2047 8,340

—EMAF 8,340

1981 50%

—WN\—%F 50%

1967 100%

—NtEE 100%

mEERERAT —=—texx 167
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Particulars of Property Interests (Continued)
MERERFE (E)

Group’s
Gross floor area Year of attributable
Investment properties Leasehold expiry (square feet) completion interest
HEEEE rEH
REYE A EW A H (FFR) & B 17 FE 4 7 &
Others
H i
Motor cycle parking space 2047 — 1975 100%
Nos. 54, 55, 56, 57 and 58 of
Yuet Ming Building,
No. 52 Yuet Wah Street,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon
LB —EmM+EF — —NtERF 100%
R #5258
AEE
2854 5556 57 &
58%% & B AL

Fujian Holdings Limited Annual Report 2017
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